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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the

securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising
from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this

report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”)
of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that
to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report

misleading.
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QA EH
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

A summary of the results, assets, liabilities and equity of the

Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the =

published audited financial statements and restated/reclassified as

appropriate, is set out below.

TXEHIAEENBERANBRFEZEE &
-BERERSE(IBEERAETIELERY
BHRERIENBEEBRTEIEBHHE) °

RESULTS E4
For the year ended 31st March
BZE=A=+—HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014
—E—tF - RFE —ZT—hF —ZTNUF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (&%)
Revenue A 1,655,450 1,295,754 1,235,797 1,258,134 907,690
Profit/(loss) before tax B ATEHF], (E5E) 131,581 42,890 10,026 22524 12,988
Income tax expenses FiSfi = (23,370) (8,133) (7,753) (5,963) (3,282)
Profit/(loss) for the year IFEKEEKZ
from continuing FRHEF
operations (E18) 108,211 34,757 2,273 16,561 9,706
Profit/(loss) for the year #IHQ& %K~
from a discontinued FERHEF,
operation (E518) — (4,136) (273,603) 8,992 37,444
Profit/(loss) attributable 72 B ER fE(L
to the shareholders of & #,/ (&)
the Company 108,211 30,621 (271,330) 25,553 47,150

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

BE - AEKES

As at 31st March

R=A=+—H

2017 2016 2015 2014

—E—t+F ZE-RE ZET-—hF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FETT FET FET FET FET

Total assets AEBTE 1,745,315 1,230,709 1,294,194 1,437,032 1,115,285

Total liabilities BfERE (818,475) | (387,501)  (479,862)  (380,687)  (122,753)
Equity attributable to PN/NG ) Y S

shareholders of the gy
Company 926,840 843,208 814,332 1,056,345 992,532

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED itz RESIZRER AR



CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
ETEHES

On behalf of the board of directors (“Board”) of North Asia Strategic
Holdings Limited (“Company”), | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) and its audited financial results for the financial year
ended 31st March 2018 (the “year”).

GENERAL OVERVIEW

During the year, our Group recorded a consolidated net profit of
approximately HK$108.2 million on a revenue of approximately
HK$1,655.5 million, representing an increase of 253.4% and 27.8%
from last year, respectively. The increase in revenue was mainly
because of continued strong demand for Surface Mount Technology
(“SMT”) equipment from our existing customers of the hi-tech
distribution and services division, mainly driven by manufacture
of smartphone, network and communication and automotive
electronics and wearable devices, etc. Our leasing division also had
shown remarkable progress in establishing a lending portfolio and
developed synergy effect with our Group’s operations in the hi-tech
distribution and services business.

DIVISION HIGHLIGHTS
i) Hi-Tech Distribution and Services Division

During the year, the division achieved a net profit of
approximately HK$120.3 million, representing an increase of
121.2% from approximately HK$54.4 million in last year, and a
revenue of approximately HK$1,622.6 million, representing an
increase of 26.1% from approximately HK$1,286.7 million in
last year.

China’s import of SMT machines surged in 2017. The unit of
SMT machines imported has been increased by approximately
52.6% in 2017 against 2016. The cause of import increase is
largely due to strong demand from smartphone manufacturers,
network & communication manufacturers and automotive
electronics manufacturers. American Tec Company Limited
("“AMT”), as leading electronic manufacturing equipment
distributor and service provider, is well positioned to capture
this expanded market. AMT’s management team will continue
to maintain a close partnership and collaboration with its key
business partner, Fuji Corporation (previous know as Fuji
Machine MFG Co., Ltd.), a manufacturer of high precision,
leading edge technology SMT machines and other industry
leading peripheral equipment suppliers and business
partners, in seizing the opportunities of smart manufacturing
transformation under China’s vision of China Manufacturing
2025.

AANERRETREERERARA(ARE]D)
Exg((Eg5g)) REFRARENBEARR
(I ARBD2FREEBE_T—/\F=A
=T ALEMBRFRE(ARFE]) 2 RERIBEE
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i o

E
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
ETEHES

ii) Leasing Division

During the year, the leasing division had continued to
grow satisfactory and recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$32.8 million, representing an increase of 263.6% from
approximately HK$9.0 million in last year. As at 31st March
2018, the aggregate principal amount of finance lease loans
amounted to approximately HK$316.7 million, representing an
increase of 80.3% from approximately HK$175.6 million in last
year.

OUTLOOK

In the coming year, the global economy will be challenging with
the political uncertainty, the trade war between with the United
States and China and other uncertainty due to the expected US
interest rate rise. On the other hand, we expect the momentum
of global economy will remain a steady growth and lead to a low
unemployment rate, the domestic demand will stay resilient as
consumer spending growth is likely to remain moderate but steady.
Our Group will strive to gain further market share of our hi-tech
distribution and services division by providing better services and
enhancing the marketing program. The leasing division is expected
to have a moderate growth and produce synergy effect with the
Group’s business operations. Going forward, the Group will continue
to enhance the operational efficiency of varies business divisions
with an aim to improve their profitability and increase shareholders’
value.

APPRECIATION

We believe our long-term investment strategy, setting operating
goals, motivating our staff and sharing success with business
partners will be essential elements for the Group’s success. | would
like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to our
business partners, our customers, the Board and our employees for
their trust and support in the year. On behalf of the Board, | would
also like to offer our utmost appreciation to our shareholders for
their confidence in our Company.

Zhang Yifan

Chairlady
Hong Kong, 7th June 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE D

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

During the year ended 31st March 2018 (the “year”), the
Group recorded a consolidated revenue of approximately
HK$1,655,450,000, representing a 27.7% growth from approximately
HK$1,295,754,000 in last year. The increase in revenue was mainly
due to approximately 26.1% year on year increase in revenue
from our hi-tech distribution and services division which was a
result of continuing strong demand for SMT equipment from our
existing customers of the manufacture of smartphone, network and
communication and automotive electronics and wearable devices,
etc.. During the year, the Group recorded a consolidated net profit
of approximately HK$108,211,000, increased by 253.4% from
HK$30,621,000 in last year. The Group had improved its gross
profit margin during the year mainly due to significant increase
in commission sales associated with repeated orders from the
existing customers, which continued to upgrade their manufacturing
capacity.

During the year, the Group’s operating expenditures amounted to
approximately HK$227,056,000, representing an increase of 28.2%
from approximately HK$177,085,000 in last year. The increase in
operating expenditures was mainly due to an increase in selling and
distribution expenses which were increased in line with revenue.
Furthermore, the Group recorded basic earnings per share of
approximately HK4.33 cents in the year, representing 170.62%
increase from HK1.60 cents in last year.

Below is a summary of the financial and business highlights of our
business divisions. The profit/loss figures, disclosed below, do not
include any intra-group sales and charges, as they are eliminated
upon consolidation.

HI-TECH DISTRIBUTION AND SERVICES DIVISION

The Group conducts its hi-tech distribution and services business
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, American Tec Company
Limited (“AMT”). AMT is a leader in Asia in the business of
distribution, sales and service of SMT equipment, semiconductor
manufacturing equipment and software on manufacturing control,
with a history of more than 30 years serving its customers in the hi-
technology sector. AMT’s team of more than 190 engineers and
customer care staff are located in more than 25 cities in China,
South-East Asia, Vietnam and India. Customers include most of
the major telecom and electronic equipment manufacturers in the
world. AMT is especially well positioned with the growing base of
Chinese manufacturers. Its suppliers include leading equipment and
solutions manufacturers from Asia, the United States and Europe.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DM

During the year, the revenue of the division was approximately
HK$1,622,619,000 representing an increase of 26.1% from
approximately HK$1,286,725,000 in last year. The reason of increase
was mainly due to continued strong demand for SMT equipment
from our existing and new customers both in the telecommunication
and industrial market segments. During the year, the division’s direct
machine sales was approximately HK$1,391,021,000, representing
an increase of 16.7% from approximately HK$1,191,616,000 in
last year. The division recorded approximately HK$136,008,000 in
commission and other service income, representing an increase
of 536.7% from approximately HK$21,361,000 in last year. This
significant increase in commission and other service income was
mainly due to new production lines purchased by one of our local key
customers and the equipment was for the production of new model
smartphone and related components. The Division’s spare parts
sales were approximately HK$84,728,000, increased 46.6% from
approximately HK$57,813,000 in last year. The Division’s software
sales were approximately HK$10,861,000, decreased by 31.8% from
approximately HK$15,935,000 in last year.

On profit side, during the year, the net profit of the division was
approximately HK$120,329,000, representing an increase of 121.2%
from approximately HK$54,398,000 in last year. The significant
increase was mainly due to favorable business mix and higher sales
volume. AMT’s management has taken various measures to maintain
operating cost efficiency and has achieved expected profitability
despite an increasing challenging market.

LEASING DIVISION

The Group conducts its leasing business through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, North Asia Financial Leasing (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(“NAFL”) in China Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone. NAFL provides
finance and operating lease arrangements to customers of the
Group’s hi-tech distribution and services division and projects.
During the year, the division generated a revenue from the leasing
business of approximately HK$32,832,000, representing an increase
of 263.6% from approximately HK$9,029,000 in last year and
recorded a net profit of approximately HK$14,491,000, representing
an increase of 8.2 times from approximately HK$1,570,000 in last
year. As at 31st March 2018, the aggregate principal amount of
finance lease loans was HK$316,697,000, representing an increase
by 80.3% from HK$175,617,000 as at 31st March 2017.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED itz REZIZIRE R A A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE D

OUTLOOK
Overall Summary

The encouraging results achieved in this year has further enhanced
the confidence of the management in the prospects in both the
hi-tech distribution and services division and leasing division.
We expect to see another boom in SMT industry in the coming
few years following the wide range upgrade of mobile devices to
telecom station equipment from 4G to 5G telecom network. The 5G
network offers ultra-fast network speed for future auto pilot vehicle
and virtual reality applications. Our customers including some
leading telecommunication companies in China will play a vital role
in the 5G transformation and provide immense opportunities to the
SMT industry. We will embrace the opportunities offered by 5G
transformation and continue to manage cash, cost and risks and,
to build our strength by working with our management teams to
improve capability and efficiency.

Hi-Tech Distribution and Services Division

According to International Data Corporation (“IDC”), smartphone
vendors’ shipment declined 2.4% from 344.4 million units shipped in
the first quarter of 2017 to 336.1 million units during the first quarter
of 2018. The China market was the biggest driver of this decline.
Despite this short-term disappointing performance, IDC is still
very optimistic about smart phone’s future. IDC predicted that the
worldwide smartphone market will reach a total of 1.49 billion units
shipped in 2018 and reach 1.68 billion units in 2022 at a compound
annual growth rate (“CAGR”) of 2.8%, driven by the increasing
demand for the new artificial intelligence, augmented reality and
virtual reality, contextually aware, and 5G functionalities.

The future of smartphone market was hindered by the potential trade
war between China and the United States, the two largest economy
in the world. The sanction of US Government against a Chinese
tele-communication manufacturing company became a black swan
in 2018. We will continue to monitor the latest development and
work closely with our partners to come up with more competitive
and innovative solutions. We will also continue to invest in our
service and support infrastructure and systems so as to attain total
customer satisfaction and customer retention. At the same time, we
will also closely monitor our working capital, gross profit margin,
operating cost and industry developments with a view to maintain
our cash flow and profitability, as well as the long-term sustainability
and growth of our business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DM

Leasing Division

In 2017, the global leasing business continued its rapid
development with a strong momentum. The leasing business, which
the Company is engaged in, underwent more favorable development
in 2017 with the continuous steady growth of SMT on the back of
up-and-coming manufacturing of mobile phone-based consumer
electronics brands in the Mainland China, yet financing needs were
predominantly from small and medium-sized customers, the majority
of which being original equipment manufacturing (OEM) factories.
Benefitting from the support of the nation’s policy on the microchip
industry, semiconductor packaging and testing underwent rapid
development. In addition to repeated orders from existing customers
with recurring financing needs, the number of new finance lease
customers also shot up, thereby becoming the main driving force of
our business growth. It is projected that following the trial run of 5G
communications technologies, leasing in SMT and semiconductor

packaging and testing will continue its satisfactory growth in 2018.

With the Group’s financial platform in Hong Kong and abundant
industry experience (in particular in hi-tech manufacturing
equipment), the Group’s leasing business will remain focus on the
equipment finance leasing on SMT, semiconductor packaging and
to provide diversified solutions and services for customers while
closely monitor the equipment finance leasing demand in other
growing areas for a solid and rapid expansion in new business and

income.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE D

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year, the Group generally finance its operation with
internally generated resources and banking facilities provided by
its principal bankers in Hong Kong. As at 31st March 2018, the
Group had no interest-bearing bank borrowing (2017: Nil). As at
31st March 2018, the Group had banking facilities of approximately
HK$373,850,000 (2017: approximately HK$676,105,000) from
several banks for trade financing. As at 31st March 2018,
banking facilities of approximately HK$352,460,000 were utilised
by the Group (2017: approximately HK$146,910,000). These
facilities were secured by corporate guarantees of approximately
HK$373,850,000 (2017: approximately HK$676,104,000) provided
by the Company. As at 31st March 2018, the Group had no held-
to-maturity investments in Corporate bonds (2017: HK$46,419,000).
As at 31st March 2018, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$1,745,315,000 (2017: approximately HK$1,230,709,000)
and total liabilities of approximately HK$818,475,000 (2017:
approximately HK$387,501,000). The gearing ratio of the Group,
which was calculated as total liabilities over total assets was 46.9%
(2017: 31.5%).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March 2018, the guarantees given by the Group to
certain banks in respect of performance bonds and bid bonds in
favour of certain contract customers amounted to HK$4,459,000
(2017: HK$3,262,000).

NET ASSET VALUE

Consolidated net asset value per ordinary share attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company was approximately HK$0.34
as at 31st March 2018, decreased by HK$0.1 from approximately
HK$0.44 as at 31st March 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DM

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31st March 2018, the Group employed 250 (2017: 289)
staff. Salaries and annual bonuses are determined according to
positions and performance of the employees. Remuneration policies
are reviewed annually by the management and remuneration
packages are structured to take into account the comparable level
of the market. The Group provides on-the-job training and training
subsidies to its employees in addition to pension schemes and
medical insurance. Total staff costs from continuing operations
including contribution to retirement benefit schemes incurred
during the year amounted to approximately HK$118,447,000 (2017:
HK$109,963,000).

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to Directors, employees and
eligible participants who contributed or will contribute to the Group.
Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 22(b) to the
consolidated financial statements and in the section of “Equity-

Linked Agreements” on pages 43 to 47.

COMMITMENTS

The Group’s contractual commitments are primarily related to the
operating lease commitments of its office premises and certain
of its office equipment under operating lease arrangements. The
Group’s operating lease commitments amounted to approximately
HK$30,780,000 in aggregate as at 31st March 2018 (2017:
HK$19,428,000).
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Zhang Yifan

Ms. Zhang Yifan, aged 37, joined the Company in November 2014
as an executive Director. She was further appointed as Chairlady
of the Company on 23rd June 2016. Ms. Zhang had completed a
diploma in International Business from Shanghai Ocean University.
She is also the chairlady of nomination committee and a member of

remuneration committee of the Company.
Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming

Mr. Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming, aged 53, joined the Company in
February 2015 as an independent non-executive Director. He was
re-designated as an executive Director on 24th February 2016.
Upon Mr. Tsui’s re-designation, he was appointed as the Chief
Financial Officer of the Group’s hi-tech distribution and services
division until his appointment as the Chief Executive Officer of this
division on 9th October 2017. During the period from January 2006
to May 2014, he has been an executive director, the chief financial
officer and company secretary of International Mining Machinery
Holdings Limited, a company whose shares were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange with a stock code of 1683 until
2013. He has comprehensive operating and financial experience
in hi-tech distribution and services business. Mr. Tsui obtained
his Master’s degree in Accounting and Finance from the London
School of Economics & Political Science, UK and a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from University of Southern California,
U.S. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since 1995 and the American Institute of Certified

Public Accountants since 1995.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEEH

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Joseph Liang Hsien Tse

Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse, aged 63, joined the Company in
February 2013 as an independent non-executive Director. His
appointment was continued for another three years commencing
from 19th February 2016. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of LifeTech Scientific Corporation, a company
previously listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange with a stock
code of 8122 and thereafter transferred to the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange with a stock code of 1302, with effect from 22nd
October 2011. Mr. Liang served as special consultant on campus
development at United International College (“UIC”) in Zhuhai, the
PRC since October 2011. He was the executive vice president —
Finance of TWS Industrial (Holdings) Ltd since 6th October 2011, a
private company engaged in battery production. He later acted as
consultant from August 2013 to December 2013. He returned to full
time teaching as associate professor at UIC on September 2013.
Mr. Liang has extensive experience in finance and accounting. From
October 2009 to September 2011, Mr. Liang was the managing
director of the financial planning and development department
at UIC and was responsible for serving financial advisory and
human resources management functions. During October 2005 to
December 2008, he was a director at Shenzhen Alclear Consulting
Limited, a company engaging in financial, corporate management
and investment consultancy services, and was responsible for
developing accounting training in the PRC. Between August 2001
and October 2005, Mr. Liang served various roles at Skyworth
Digital Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange with a stock code of 751, including as the group’s
financial controller and company secretary in charge of finance and
management information system functions. From November 1993 to
August 2001, he was the finance manager at Hongkong International
Terminals Limited for Yantian International Container Terminals, both
companies being container terminal companies managed by the
Hutchison Port Holdings Trust. During the period from June 2014
to June 2015, Mr. Liang was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of China Animal Healthcare Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with a stock code of
940. Mr. Liang completed a diploma in business management from
Hong Kong Baptist College in December 1977. He also obtained a
Master’s degree in Professional Accounting from University of Texas,
Austin in May 1981. Mr. Liang later obtained a Bachelor’'s degree
in Language and Translation from Hong Kong Open University in
December 2007. Mr. Liang is a member of the Texas Society of
Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (formerly known as Hong Kong Society of Accountants)
since June 1982 and Association of Certified Chartered Accountants
(ACCA) since May 1982. Mr. Liang is the chairman of the audit
committee and remuneration committee and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)
Kenneth Kon Hiu King

Mr. Kenneth Kon Hiu King, aged 56, joined the Company in February
2013 as an independent non-executive Director. His appointment
was continued for another three years commencing from 19th
February 2016. He was appointed as a director and deputy chief
executive of Dan Form Holdings Company Limited (“Dan Form”) in
October 1994, and re-designated as its non-executive director in
October 2012 until his resignation on 22nd December 2016. Dan
Form (now known as Asiasec Properties Limited) is listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange with a stock code of 271 and
owns significant property interests in Hong Kong. Between 1999
and 2007, Mr. Kon was also an independent non-executive director
of Jingwei Textile Machinery Company Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with a stock code of 350.
Mr. Kon has been involved in the planning of many large-scale
investments and development projects in the PRC and Hong Kong
and has over 27 years’ experience in investment and management
in manufacturing industries and property development. He also
has extensive experience in securities trading, corporate finance,
mergers and acquisitions and corporate restructuring. Mr. Kon
graduated from Middlesex University in the United Kingdom with a
Bachelor’s degree in Business Studies in 1987. Mr. Kon is a member
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination

committee of the Company.

BYFHITES )

FT&Y

THEDEE 56 RZZE—Z=F_AMAR
RAIREIENTES - BZAEHEHEZT—X
FZATIBREHF=F - TR NANANUEFE+ A
BEEANEERERAR (] ESE LS
TRBE R —F+ARAMTHENTES
BHERR -T—RE+-A-+_HEIE - f
(ABEEERRAR)RERAER LM
BARFEAE271 - REBRBELEHE 2 MERE
HoR—NAMANFE-ZZZTLF TEENA
KEGEBEBIROBR AR (R RAER LT
ZATE BPRSEA350)BIIFERITES - T
FEEL2EZHNFERES L AAKEER
HECZHRE T EREXERDEER KA
RERFTEERBE-_+EFEH B EES
BE PERE - AHRKBURGESHEA
EHEELELER - Th+EENEEMiddlesex
University - R— NN\ FEBREEE L E -
FEERRARBZEES  FTHEESRIES

2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT 3§

15



16

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)
Joseph Chan Nap Kee

Mr. Joseph Chan Nap Kee, aged 57, joined the Company in
February 2013 as a non-executive Director. He was re-designated
as an independent non-executive Director on 4th March 2016, and
further appointed as an additional member of each of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. Chan has over 30 years of experience in
commercial and investment banking and asset management. He
is a founding partner of Oriental Patron Financial Group which
was founded in 1993. He is also an executive director of Oriental
Patron Asia Limited and a non-executive director of Oriental Patron
Securities Limited. Oriental Patron Asia Limited is the investment
manager of OP Financial Limited (formerly known as OP Financial
Investments Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange with a stock code of 1140. Mr. Chan was
appointed as an executive director of Kaisun Energy Group Limited,
a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange with a stock
code of 8203 in September 2008. He is currently the chairman
and chief executive officer, member of remuneration committee
and nomination and corporate governance committee of Kaisun
Energy Group Limited. Mr. Chan is also a non-executive director
of HNA Infrastructure Company Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange with a stock code of 357 since
October 2007. On social services, Mr. Chan is the executive vice
president of Hong Kong Energy and Minerals United Associations,
the chairman of Silk Road Economic Development Research Center,
vice chairman of China Hong Kong Economic Trading International
Association and vice president of Hong Kong Hubei Fraternity,
chairman of Banking, Finance & Securities Committee of Hong
Kong Macau and Myanmar Chamber of Commerce & Industry, and
honorary advisor of Xinjiang Association of Hong Kong. Mr. Chan
holds licenses of Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising
on securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate finance), and Type
9 (asset management) under the SFO (Cap. 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong). He received Master of Science Degree majoring in
international marketing from the University of Strathclyde, Bachelor
of Science Degree in Aviation Management from Coventry University
and a Diploma in China Investment and Trade from Peking

University.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Li Zhen, Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Li Zhen, aged 46, joined the Company in December 2014. He is
responsible for the operations of finance leasing division. Mr. Li has
over 20 years of experience in project management such as nuclear
power plant construction; and in particular he has rich experience
in project management, company daily operation, investment and
financing management. He holds a master's degree in Business
Administration from Tsinghua University and a bachelor’s degree in

Engineering from Nanhua University.
Law Wai Fai, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

Mr. Law Wai Fai, aged 50, joined the Company in June 2013. Mr.
Law has extensive professional experience in financial management,
investor relations, company secretarial and corporate governance,
in particular over 17 years of accounting and company secretarial
experience at listed companies in Hong Kong. He holds a master’s
degree in Business Administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from the City
University of Hong Kong. He is also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Institute

of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

SREEBAE
iR BEEYEEE
TRALE 46 R-E—WNFE+-AMAKR
NEl - HEEMEHRENHZLE - hEHES
B TFTEES  Tr2EBRIEWERES
EEEZEREI HEHEEE  RAAEE

B RRMETE I AARYELR - HiFHEE
RETHEEBEIBNMBEAS IS LS

fiL °

BERE WKAEARARIAWE

BEWEEAE 50 RZE—Z=ZFXAMAK
DR BEERVBER  REAEBR A7
ERTEERERABEEEXELR  LEER
BER LT ARZER RARAWELHHAEER S
TEFER FIHFEEEFEIAREZEImEEEL
au&%%mmk%aﬁ BB - AR

S e B U RERE KBRS est

% BEREE -

2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT 3§

17



18

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEERRE

The Company endeavours to maintain high standards of corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders, and follows the
principles set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The Board will continue reviewing and updating its corporate
governance practices from time to time to ensure compliance with

applicable codes and standards.

Throughout the year ended 31st March 2018 (the “year”),
the Company complied with all the Code provisions with the
exceptions addressed below and, where appropriate, adopted the

recommended best practices set out in the Code.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. However, the Board’s decisions are implemented
under the leadership of the Chairlady with the involvement and
support of the chief executive officer(s) and general manager(s) of
the Company’s operating companies. The Board believes that the
balance of authority and division of responsibility are adequately
ensured by the operations of the Board and management which

comprise experienced and high calibre individuals.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing set
out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required
Standard”) as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Required

Standard during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31st March 2018, the Board comprised five Directors, with two
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The independent non-executive Directors represent more than one-
third of the Board. The composition of the Board during the year is

set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Zhang Yifan (Chairlady)

Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Joseph Liang Hsien Tse

Kenneth Kon Hiu King

Joseph Chan Nap Kee

Biographical details including changes of information of current
Directors are set out in the section of “Profiles of Directors and

Senior Management” on pages 13 to 17 to this annual report.
Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person or through other electronic
means of communication at least four times every year to determine
overall strategic direction and objectives and approve quarterly,
interim and annual results, budgets and other significant matters.
At least 14 days’ notice of regular Board meetings are given to all
Directors, who are all given an opportunity to attend and include
matters in the agenda for discussion. Apart from formal meetings,
matters requiring Board approval are also arranged by means of
circulation of written resolutions. Senior management from time
to time provides to the Directors information on activities and
development of the business of the Group. The company secretary
takes detailed minutes of the meetings and keeps records of

matters discussed and decisions resolved at the meetings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Meetings (continued)

The Directors can seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary.
According to the current Board’s practices, should a potential
conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder of the
Company or Director arise, the matter is discussed in a Board
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution.
Independent non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest
should be present at meetings dealing with conflict issues. When
the Board considers any proposal or transaction in which a Director
has a conflict of interest, the Director should declare his interest

and abstains from voting.
Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

Six Board meetings and one general meeting were held during the
year with an average attendance rate of approximately 97% and
100% respectively. The attendance of each Director at the Board

meetings and the general meeting are set out below:

EE8 (%)
EERRR(H)

WEFE  EEURETERERSRKBIEX
BER BRALXQARAE - REAKEFEHE
B MRS RARRETERRKEE BT
2FR - AZFESREFTSSEH LW Mk
BREMABRRE - WENSFHRZBILIEY
TEFRHFEEERMAEC SR HEFEZE
BEERETPENZERZEMEZARZE
EREFTERRENERRERE -

EEXNEREERER

MAREER  HBITNRESESEEL—ARE
e FHEFEES RN EI7% M 100% o FF
EHNFEETSLRLABRERS ZBERHINOT ¢

Directors’ attendance/meetings held
ESHEETEERY
Annual General

Board Meetings Meeting
Exggl RERBERE

Executive Directors BITES

Zhang Yifan w‘—M 6/6 1/1
Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming REHR 6/6 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHTES

Joseph Liang Hsien Tse RER 6/6 1/1
Kenneth Kon Hiu King FEEL) 5/6 1/1
Joseph Chan Nap Kee PR a7 6/6 1/1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Roles and responsibilities

The Board has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. They are collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board is accountable to shareholders for the strategic
development of the Group with the goal of maximizing long-term
shareholders’ value, while balancing broader stakeholder interests.
Given the diversity and volume of the Company’s business,
responsibilities for execution and daily operations are delegated to

management.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of
expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity. The Board is of reasonable size
and composition to provide checks and balances that safeguard the
interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole. All the
Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the Company’s

affairs.

During the year, the executive Directors were responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Group’s operations. These
Directors conducted regular meetings with the senior management
of the Company and its subsidiaries, at which operational issue
and financial performance were evaluated. The non-executive
Directors provided the Company with a wide range of expertise and
experience. They brought advice and judgment on issues relating to
the Group’s strategy, performance, risk and management process,
and corporate governance through their contribution at Board and

committee meetings.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, newly appointed
Directors shall hold office until the next following general meeting
and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

BEE®H)
AGEEE
EECEERERERAQT HEEBEESR
EWEBEREBEHURENEEARY - EFE
—FETERAROE 2 M - ABTERESR

B REAEEBFTREER  MERRREERE
BRER ERARRZEBEEMEZEL &
EEREZIKEBENTREEBTERE -

BEEVRZEEXERP2BE - TREBESK
BZEARERETRBE - BEFEZABRA
KEEE  RARRBRRERARNR 2 ERA R
REEHAERHE - 2RBEFEHCHARAEHR
2 HRR ) R A A o

RAFEAR  ATEFARAKEXBKLE ZH
REE ZFEFHEARRAREMBARZEMR
EEABERRTER RO LAHEERER
MBRI - FATEER/ARARRZEEEN
ML BREEREERZEERA LIFRY
B B RHABASEERR KA RRK
ERRFARGEEAFHREZER LA -

REARBZRAMAE  HZEEEZERKE
TRERXG R  UEERRZAEG LER
B BREF(BRAEEMHZEST IEELE
—FWmEER R

e
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independence

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Company had
at least three independent non-executive Directors. Amongst the
independent non-executive Directors, at least one of whom had

appropriate financial management expertise.

Each current independent non-executive Director had given the
Company an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board considered all current
independent non-executive Directors to be independent under the
guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules. Up to the date of this
report, the Board has not been aware of the occurrence of any
events which would cause it to believe that their independence has

been impaired.
Continuing Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a
comprehensive induction package covering policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules and
other relevant regulatory requirements. All Directors shall participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their

knowledge and skills.

The Directors are from time to time provided materials on
amendments to or updates on the relevant laws, rules and
regulations to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company has been encouraging the
Directors and officers to participate in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars relating to the GEM Listing
Rules, applicable regulatory requirements and corporate
governance practices organized by professional bodies and/or
independent auditors to further improve their relevant knowledge

and skills.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Continuing Professional Development (continued)

During the year, all Directors participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by attending seminar relating
to corporate governance and regulations or by reading materials
relevant to their duties and responsibilities. The participation by

individual Director during the year is set out below:

BEE®H)
RESERRE)

RAFEAR  2REFCEBLERHELEER
ERflzHekMEARERERAEEZE
o 2HEEEREEREREY - RAFEAR
EREE22EERRFINAT

Read regulatory Attend conference/

updates/materials seminars/workshop

BIEEE HEEE
RHME AR e TS
Executive Directors HITES
Zhang Yifan w—l v v
Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming R &R v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Joseph Liang Hsien Tse REER v v/
Kenneth Kon Hiu King T v v/
Joseph Chan Nap Kee PRI E v/ v

Insurance

The Company arranges, and will review annually, appropriate

insurance cover in respect of legal against its Directors and officers.

CHAIRLADY AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Throughout the year, the Company had Ms. Zhang Yifan to assume
the role as the Chairlady of the Board, with no chief executive
officer. The Board’s decisions are implemented under the
leadership of the Chairlady with the involvement and support of the
chief executive officer(s) and general manager(s) of the Company’s
operating companies. The Board believes that the balance of
authority and division of responsibility are adequately ensured
by the operations of the Board and management which comprise

experienced and high calibre individuals.

RER

ARBCHEEZERSRABTREEEY AR
TEEEE 2R - XREFIERR -

EFRERTHRER

RAFERN  k—NXEt—BERERARFRZES
R HUEBTBREH EFEIRRETR
ZEBET  URARREERR ZITRAAE LA
BREZ2ERXFHTENT EFSHE HA
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2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT 3§

23



24

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEERRE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The term of office of each of the existing non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) is for a period
of three years unless terminated by either party with one
month’s written notice. All the non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings in

accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely
nomination committee, remuneration committee and audit
committee. All these committees have their respective terms of
reference which accord with the principles set out in the Code

contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.
Nomination Committee

During the year and up to the date of this report, the nomination
committee of the Company comprised of not less than four
members at all the time, and the majority of whom are independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse, Mr.
Kenneth Kon Hiu King, Mr. Joseph Chan Nap Kee; and Ms. Zhang
Yifan, the Chairlady and an executive Director.

The nomination committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or reappointment
of directors, evaluation of board size, structure and composition,
management of board succession with reference to the board
diversity policy and certain guidelines including appropriate
professional knowledge and industry experience, personal ethics,
integrity and personal skills, and time commitments of member
and assessing the independence of non-executive directors. The
Board has adopted a set of the revised terms of reference of the
nomination committee which are aligned with the provisions set out
in the Code. The terms of reference of the committee setting out
its authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the

websites of the Company and the GEM.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

During the year, the committee review the board composition, board
diversity policy and retirement of Directors by rotation and made
recommendations to the Board. One meeting was held during the
year with an attendance rate of 100%. The attendance of each

nomination committee member during the year is set out below:

BEEZEEH)
REZEG(E)

RAFERN  ZESRIAEFTGKEZAK - &
FEREZTHEBRRESZZHESE  TAE
FEREEZ - AFENGRITNEH &R
EHRIEFEREI00% c RAFERN  SRAEE
EgXBEEERE ZBERAEINNT

Nomination Committee
members’ attendance/
meetings held
REZEEREHE
BITFBRE

Zhang Yifan w/—A
Joseph Liang Hsien Tse 2EAR

Kenneth Kon Hiu King TS
Joseph Chan Nap Kee B <7 B

Remuneration Committee

During the year and up to the date of this report, the remuneration
committee of the Company comprised of not less than four
members at all the time, namely Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse (who
serves as the committee chairman), Mr. Kenneth Kon Hiu King, and
Mr. Joseph Chan Nap Kee, all being independent non-executive
Directors; and Ms. Zhang Yifan, the Chairlady and an executive
Director. The Board has adopted a set of the terms of reference of
the remuneration committee which are aligned with the provisions
set out in the Code. The committee has adopted the model where
it has delegated responsibility to determine the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management
and make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of the
Non-executive Directors. The terms of reference of the committee
setting out its authority, duties and responsibilities are available on
both the websites of the Company and the GEM.

The remuneration committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policy and
overseeing the remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and senior management. It takes into consideration of factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities, and employment conditions of directors and senior

management.

11
1/1
11
11

FMEES

RAFEARBEAREDSR  RARZHEME
Be—EHRTPREAKEEN - BIERES
EEEZERER)  TEDEERRTELEE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

In addition to the committee meeting, the remuneration committee
may also deal with matters by way of circulation. During the year,
the committee reviewed and determined the remuneration packages
of the Directors and senior management of the Company. Three
meetings were held during the year with an average attendance
rate of approximately 92%. The attendance of each remuneration

committee members during the year is set out below:

BEEZEEH)
YHMESE(H)

KRZEeezI FMZES A LEHT AR
BEH RAFEARN - ZEEERIMEEAR
AEERERERABZHMEFE  Z=ZREH
ZFIGHEERLN02% c RAFER  EFHEMZ
BERBHFEERZBERHINDT

Remuneration Committee
members’ attendance/

meetings held

FHESEREHE

BITEBRE

Joseph Liang Hsien Tse RER 3/3

Zhang Yifan sRk—R 3/3

Kenneth Kon Hiu King FrES) 2/3

Joseph Chan Nap Kee V=S 3/3
Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management EERaREBEASZFMH

For the year ended 31st March 2018, total Directors’ remuneration
amounted to approximately HK$11,371,000 (2017: HK$6,549,000).
Remuneration of the executive Directors is prudently designed to
attract, motivate and retain them to formulate strategies and to
oversee operational matters of the Group and to reward them for
enhancing value to the shareholders. Details of the remuneration
of the Directors for the year are set out in note 8(b) to the

accompanying financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SREABE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

The remuneration payable to the members of the senior

management of the Group other than the executive Directors for the

year is as follows:

EEZES®)
EEREREBEARZHM(E)

RAFE  BRETFAEESREREKE (1T

BERINZFBOT

For the year ended 31st March
BE-A=+—HLEE

PLRE: 2017

—Z— )\F T —+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Basic salaries and allowances EARH & K2R 5,202 5,224

Bonus TE4L 1,678 2,714
Employer’s contribution to retirement {BE Z BIREHEIHE K

scheme 57 80

Equity-settled share option expenses LARRIE#EE 7 BEIRRER 2 640 —

7,577 8,018

For the year ended 31st March
BE-A=+—-HLEFE

PLORE: 2017
—Z—)\&E —T—tF

Remuneration by band FHER
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 %7 — 2,000,000 % 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 %7t — 3,000,000 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 7T — 4,000,000 T 1
3 3
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Company’s
audit committee comprised not less than three members at all time.
The members of the audit committee comprised Mr. Joseph Liang
Hsien Tse (who served as committee chairman and has appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in financial matters), Mr.
Kenneth Kon Hiu King and Mr. Joseph Chan Nap Kee, all being

independent non-executive Directors.

The Board has adopted a set of the revised terms of reference of
the audit committee to align with the provisions set out in the Code
in March 2016. The committee’s principal duties are to ensure
the adequacy and effectiveness of the accounting and financial
controls of the Group, oversee the performance of internal control
systems, risk management and financial reporting process, monitor
the integrity of the financial statements and compliance with
statutory and listing requirements and to oversee independence and

qualifications of the external auditor.

The audit committee meets at least four times a year to discuss any
area of concern during the audits or reviews and at least twice of
the meetings shall be with the external auditor. The audit committee
reviews the quarterly, interim and annual reports before submission
to the Board. Senior representatives of the external auditor,
executive Directors and senior management are invited to attend

the meetings, if required.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

During the year, the audit committee has approved the nature and
scope of the statutory audits, and reviewed the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements of the Group, and was content
that the accounting policies and standards of the Group are in
accordance with the current best practices in Hong Kong. Five
meetings were held during the year with an attendance rate of
100%. The attendance of each audit committee members during the

year is set out below:

BEEZEEH)

BEREEG(E)

RAFERN  BEZEZECCHEEITERZME
NEE WEMAEBZEZE -  FHERFEME
HE - BmEAEBz et B RENDNFER
BREBZREER NAFERNYRITARNE
HoHEEAR100%  c RAFERN  SFBZEB
GRETRRBEHRZBAHEINNOT

Audit Committee
members’ attendance/
meetings held

EREEEREHE

BITEBIRE

Joseph Liang Hsien Tse G 5/5
Kenneth Kon Hiu King FEES) 5/5
Joseph Chan Nap Kee V=S 5/5

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including: (a) to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance; (b)
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; (c) to review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to employees and Directors; and (e) to review
the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report. During the year, the Board reviewed

the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance.

EEERMAE
EXoRREABRTORERBE % (a)
FETRIBAADB L PEEBHERER + (b)
R REREENEREBEAS ZBIIREER
EER CO)RMREEARRAEETERERE
ERETEIBERER ¢ (d)HIFT] - B RE
SEAREENREFZHETTIRARTMON
B R(e)RAARRAET TR Z BN RAEDRE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEERRE

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company reviews the appointment of external auditor on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of
the audit fee. During the year, the fee payable to the Company’s
external auditor for the audit of the Company and its subsidiaries
amounted to approximately HK$1,930,000 (2017: HK$2,080,000)
and fee for non-audit related activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$440,000 (2017:
HK$530,000).

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year, the Group has complied with Principle C.2 of
the Corporate Governance Code by establishing appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems.
Management is responsible for the design, implementation and
monitoring of such systems, while the Board oversees management

in performing its duties on an ongoing basis.
Risk Assessment System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system

comprises the following phases:

. Phase 1: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives and

risks that could affect the achievement of objectives

o Phase 2: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and

evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly

o Phase 3: Consider the risk responses and ensure effective

communication to the Board
. Phase 4: On-going monitor the residual risks

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2017, no significant

risk was identified.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

(continued)
Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COSQ”) 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The components

and main features of the framework are shown as follow:
Control Environment

o Proper structures, reporting lines and appropriate authorities

and responsibilities in the pursuit of objectives are

established.
Risk Assessment
. Changes in risk that could significantly impact the system of

internal control are identified using the abovementioned risk

management system.
Control Activities

o Formal policy and procedures, such as financial reporting,
revenue and receipts, are established, implemented and

communicated throughout the Group.
Information and Communication

. Proper safeguards are established for handling and
dissemination inside information. For example, confidentiality
agreements are in place when the Group enters into
significant negotiations, and the executive Directors
are designated to speak on behalf of the Group when
communicating with external parties such as the media,

analysts or investors.
Monitoring

o Internal control deficiencies are communicated to the
responsible departments in a timely manner for taking

corrective action.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in 2017, no

significant control deficiency was identified.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

(continued)
Internal Control System (continued)

The abovementioned risk assessment and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
Internal Auditor

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA”) function, which is consisted
of professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and

tests of operating effectiveness.

An |A plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted annually and the results are reported to the

Board/ Audit Committee afterwards.

During the year, the audit committee reviewed the effectiveness
of the internal control system through the following processes and

subsequently reported the review results to the Board:

o discussions with the executive management on areas of risk
identified

o review of risks reported by the internal audit department

. review of the external audit plans

o review of issues reported by external auditor

. review of the reports from the internal audit department, the

executive management to ensure appropriate controls are in

place and any deficiencies or irregularities, if any, are rectified

Based on the result of the review for the year ended 31st March
2018, the Board considered that the risk management system and
internal control system of the Group, including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting function, and their training
programs and budget, are adequate and effective and have

complied with the provisions of the Code during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary supports the Chairlady, the Board and
Board committees by ensuring good information flow within the
Board and that Board policy and procedures are followed. The
company secretary reports to the Board and assists the Board in
functioning effectively and efficiently. He also advises the Board on
governance matters and facilitates the induction and professional
development of Directors. All Directors of the Company may call
upon the company secretary for advice and assistance at any time
in respect to their duties and the effective operation of the Board

and the Board committees.

Mr. Law Wai Fai is the chief financial officer and company secretary
of the Company. He is a full time employee of the Company and had
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Mr. Law undertook
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the

year.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (“Policy”) in
September 2013 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity

on the Board in order to enhance the quality of its performance.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a

diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and independence. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

The nomination committee of the Company will monitor the
implementation of the Policy and review the Policy annually to
ensure the effectiveness of the Policy. The nomination committee of
the Company will discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and

approval.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

According to the Bye-Laws of the Company, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meeting of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the company secretary of the Company, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. The requisition must be

lodged with the Company’s registered office.

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director of the Company are set out in the Company’s
Bye-laws and also available at the Company’s website at
www.nasholdings.com. Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing to the company
secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at 18/F, Shanghai Commercial Bank Tower, 12 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board adopted a shareholders’ communication policy which
aims at providing the shareholders and potential investors
with ready and timely access to balanced and understandable
information of the Company. The Company has established a
number of channels for maintaining an on-going dialogue with its
shareholders as follows: (a) corporate communications such as
announcements, annual reports, quarterly reports and circulars are
published and available on the GEM website at www.hkgem.com
and the Company’s website at www.nasholdings.com; (b) corporate
information is made available on the Company’s website; (c) general
meetings provide a forum for the shareholders to make comments
and exchange views with the Directors and senior management,
and the poll results of the general meetings are published on the
websites of the Company and the GEM; and (d) the Company’s
share registrars serve the shareholders in respect of share
registration, dividend payment, change of shareholders’ particulars

and related matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEERRE

INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

During the year, the Chairlady of the Board, the chairmen of the
Board committees and external auditor attended the annual general
meeting held on 7th September 2017 to answer questions from

shareholders.

The Company’'s memorandum of association and Bye-laws is
available on both the Company’s website at www.nasholdings.com
and the GEM website at www.hkgem.com. The Board is unaware of
any significant changes in the Company’s constitutional documents

during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are ultimately responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year which gives a true
and fair view. In preparing the financial statements, appropriate
accounting policies and standards are selected and applied

consistently.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in

the independent auditor’s report on pages 51 to 58 of this report.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance is
significant in maintaining investor confidence and attracting
investment. The management will devote considerate effort to
strengthen and improve the standards of the corporate governance

of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

The Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) have the
pleasure of presenting their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of North Asia Strategic Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
for the year ended 31st March 2018 (the “year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities

during the year.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group, a fair review of the business of the Group, an analysis using
financial key performance indicators and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, which can be found
in the Management Discussion & Analysis set out on pages 7 to 12
of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this director’s

report.

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group will be provided in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report which will be published on the GEM
website at www.hkgem.com and the Company’s website at
www.nasholdings.com no later than three months after the

publication of this annual report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and segment results by
operating segment for the year is set out in note 5 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
An aggregate of 810,810,810 ordinary shares were issued during
the year upon full conversion of the convertible bond in the
principal amount of HK$60,000,000 issued on 20th August 2014
by the convertible bondholder at a conversion price of HK$0.074
per conversion share on 13th July 2017. Details about the issue
of shares are also set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

Details of the Group’s results for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on pages 59 and 60, respectively, of this
annual report.

DIVIDENDS

On 8th June 2017, the Board declared a special dividend of
HK$0.06 per ordinary share, approximately HK$114,898,000 in
aggregate. This special dividend has been paid on 10th July 2017
to shareholders whose names appeared on the Register of Members
of the Company on 27th June 2017.

Apart from this, the Directors do not recommend the payment of any
final dividend for the year ended 31st March 2018 (2017: Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31st March 2018, the reserves available for distribution to
the shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$441,675,000 (2017: HK$505,819,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets, liabilities and equity of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this annual
report.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in

note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

The Group has not capitalised any interest during the year.

DONATION

The Group has not made any donation during the year (2017: Nil).

PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME

Details of the provident fund schemes are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors

Zhang Yifan (Chairlady)

Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Joseph Liang Hsien Tse

Kenneth Kon Hiu King

Joseph Chan Nap Kee

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Messrs.
Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming and Joseph Chan Nap Kee shall retire from
office by rotation and be eligible, will offer themselves for re-election

at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEgHRES

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out

on pages 13 to 17 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Group which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 8 to the

consolidated financial statements.

EENEREBEABZERE

EENEAEEABZEREENAFREIZE
EEA7TH

EERBEEN
BREERRAFA S LBERETCEEHER

AEER] LA AT A AKER —FAKLEMH
AXNAMECEERERIN ZRBEEH

EEMe s FHEENEEMBMKRMES -

2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT 3R

39



40

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st March 2018, the Directors and chief executive of the
Company and their respective associates had the following interests
or short positions in the shares and/or underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules

relating to the securities transactions by Directors:

Long positions in the shares and/or underlying shares of the

Company:

Name of Director Capacity
BEEnA 14

Zhang Yifan Beneficial owner
FR—IN BB A
Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming Beneficial owner
REA EalEBA
Joseph Liang Hsien Tse Beneficial owner
RER BEmEAA
Joseph Chan Nap Kee Beneficial owner
BR Az E EmBEAA
Kenneth Kon Hiu King Beneficial owner
FEES EmAA

Note:

(a) The above approximate percentages of the shareholdings are based
on 2,725,808,054 ordinary shares in issue as at 31st March 2018.
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EEgHRES

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2018, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the securities of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by

Directors.

Save for the above, none of the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age
had any interests in, or had been granted or exercised, any rights to
subscribe for any securities of the Company or any of its associated

corporations during the year.
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OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31st March 2018, so far as is known to the Directors and
chief executive of the Company, the following person (other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company whose interests
were disclosed above) had interests or short positions in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in
the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares and/or underlying shares of the

Company

pus

L A £ R KRR 2 s &K

mp

R-B—\E=A=1-B HEBRARAR
BITHABAA - FHAL(BR X RBRE
ZEERARTARSTRABRINRAR AR
13 R/ SRR P 25 AR D FIRIEE S
REIE P15 336 (AT B2 X EREEEM
M2 REIAR

REXRARO R SERRDZHR

Approximate

Number percentage of

Number of underlying shares and

of ordinary shares held underlying

Name of Shareholder Capacity shares held (Share Options) shares held

FRsHEER G FRfsR0 R AR

REZA 54 FREEBEREE HE(BRE) ROZBHNEIH

(Note a)

(Kiita)

Lu Ying Beneficial owner 1,827,687,238 2,720,000 67.15%

b 58 EnlAA

Note: Hiat -

(a) The above approximate percentage of shareholding is based on
2,725,808,054 ordinary shares in issue as at 31st March 2018.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company were not aware of any person (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company the interests of which
were disclosed above) who has any interests or short positions in
the securities of the Company that were required to be entered in
the register of substantial shareholders of the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO as at 31st March 2018.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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EQUITY - LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the year

or subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:
Convertible bond

On 20th August 2014, the Company issued convertible bond,
which has principal amount of HK$60 million and a maturity date of
21st August 2017. The convertible bond bears zero interest and is
unsecured. Details about the convertible bond are set out in note 24

to the consolidated financial statements.
Share Option Scheme

On 4th September 2014, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a share option scheme (the “2014 Scheme”).

The major terms of the 2014 Scheme are summarized as follows:

(1)  The purpose of the 2014 Scheme is to reward participants
who have contributed or will contribute to the Group and to
encourage participants to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company

and its shareholders as a whole.

(2) The participants of the 2014 Scheme are the employee,
agent, consultant or representative of the Company or any
subsidiary, including any executive or non-executive Director
of the Company or any subsidiary or any other person who the
Board considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed or will

contribute to the Group.
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EQUITY - LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

(8) The maximum number of ordinary shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
2014 Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the ordinary
shares in issue on the date of approval of the 2014 Scheme

(the “Scheme Limit”") or as at the date of the Shareholders’

approval of the refreshed Scheme Limit.

The maximum number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all option granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2014 Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company shall not, in aggregate exceed 30%
of the ordinary shares in issue from time to time. As at the
date of this report, the maximum number of ordinary shares of
the Company available for issue under the 2014 Scheme was

191,499,724 shares, representing approximately 7.02% of the

issued share capital in the Company.

(4)  The maximum number of ordinary shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to each grantee
under the 2014 Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Company (including both exercised and outstanding

options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the

shares in issue for the time being.

(5) The exercise period of any option granted under the 2014

Scheme shall be determined by the Board but such period

shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED itz RESIZRER AR

PR SR 175 o ()
B BI(E)

3)

(4)

(5)

RITERE —F—WF5 8 REMERE
Hp B 8 TR 2 e m A
FTRITZEBEBE LR aHTHER
MR-Z— O EIHE B B R
EHEEIRBAMOBETERRZ10%
([5HEIRE]) -

RAITERE =T —MFat & RERAQE
HiBREAtZeRE BN RTENRNSE
BREMmMA FHET AR LT BREA
ER AETBBBIFEEHTEBER
230% c RAREBR  RE-_T—HF
IR EEIT 2 AR MRKRE LR A
191,499,724 1% - HER AR A D EHTR
RZ#7.02% °

A& AR ATTRAEE 12 @A BEARE
T -EHE RERARR R E B
SRR 2 BERE(BRETE LR AT
2B ME BT R TRITZEBR
A LRIASRBEERCEITRMNZ1% -

RE-ZF-NFAERBZBEREZITE
HhmEFeEr  HTEHTEEARD
B EE S+ o



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

EQUITY - LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

(6)

The 2014 Scheme does not specify any minimum holding

period.

The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option under
the 2014 Scheme (“Offer”) must be made within 5 business
days from the date on which the letter containing the offer is
delivered to that participant together with a non-refundable

payment of HK$1.00 from each grantee.

The exercise price of an option to subscribe for ordinary
shares of the Company shall be determined by the Board but

shall not be less than the higher of:

a. The closing price of the ordinary shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet

on the date of grant, which must be a business day;

b. The average closing price of the ordinary shares of
the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately

preceding the date of grant; and

C. The nominal value of the ordinary shares on the date of

grant.

The 2014 Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years commencing on its adoption of the 2014 Scheme on
4th September 2014.

PR R E thh R ()
B BI(E)

(6)

(7)

(9)

ZE-NFFH BT ETREMSERAR
A o

BE_Z-NFHEARLBEREZCED
([ZEHDVERERER2EEXESF
T Z BB S A ¥ A MM ANE
o WEREAEEAAXMN 2 1.008 7T
TR RIEFIE o

RERANALBR2BREZITEERS
EFEET  RTEERTHEERRE
%

o

BRI BHGZANBEEE
H)eEHzEBHMBERMINEARGE
BARUTE

b. ERRHAMAAMEEXABIM
BHzEBRRERMINARAER
B TE - &

c. EBBENERHAHZHE-

—E-IFEHESRBERMAN_-F
—OFEAAMBET10FABRRAER -

2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT 3§

45



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

EQUITY — LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued) R ZH et (2
Share Option Scheme (continued) BRESEI(E)

The following table sets out the movements in the Company’s share TERHIRFERNRIE T —INFE AR A BB

options under the 2014 Scheme during the year: W2 EH
Number of share options
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Cancelled as at
Exercise 1st April during during during  Lapsed during 31st March
Name Date of grant Exercise period price* 2017 the year the year the year the year 2018
R=2-tf R=2-NE
mA-A =B=1-8
% RiAH 18 g HATE  FRERA FREME  FREHE EREAN HATE
(Note)
(Hit)
Executive Directors
HirEs
Zhang Yifan 16th August 2017 16th August 201710 HK$0.115 - 27,256,000 - - - 27,256,000
15th August 2027
&0 Z-HENATRE ZEHENATRBE 0015%ET
“TCHE/IATRA
Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming 16t August 2017 16th August 2017 to HK$0.115 — 2,000,000 — — - 2,000,000
15th August 2027
RER ZZ-HENRTRE ZEHENATRBE 05T
“RCEENATRA
Independent non-executive Directors
BUkYTES
Joseph Liang Hsien Tse  16th August 2017 16th August 2017 to HK$0.115 — 2,000,000 - — — 2,000,000
15th August 2027
28 ZI-CENATRE ZE-EENATAEE 05T
ZBZLEN\ATIA
Joseph Chan Nap Kee ~ 16th August 2017 16th August 2017 to HK$0.115 - 2,000,000 — — — 2,000,000
15th August 2027
Rz ZT-tE\ATRE ZE-LENATREE 05
ZECEENATIA
Kenneth Kon Hiu King  16th August 2017 16th August 2017to HK$0.115 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
15th August 2027
TEY ZTtE\ATRE ZE-LENATRBE 0115
ZEEENATEA
Sub-Total - 35,256,000 - - - 35,256,000
It
Substantial Shareholder
IZRR
Lu Ying 16th August 2017 16th August 201710 HK$0.115 - 2,720,000 - - - 2,720,000
15th August 2027
i3 ZEHENAITRE ZE-tENATAER 0115ET
ZZZHENATRA
Employees of the Group
15EES
Employees 16th August 2017 16th August 2017to~ HK$0.115 — 35,256,000 — — — 35,256,000
15th August 2027
[E8 ZBHENATRE ZE-tENATREE 011587
“EENATERR
Total - 73,232,000 - - — 73,232,000
]
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

EQUITY - LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)
Note:

The closing price per share immediately before 16th August 2017, the date of
grant, was HK$0.115.

* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of the share options granted to Directors, a substantial
shareholder and employees was determined using the binomial
model. The inputs into the model and the fair value of the total share

options granted were as follows:

Expected dividend yield (%) 0.000
Expected volatility (%) 79.012
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2.030
Expected life of share options (year) 10.000

Fair value of the total share options granted HK$4,684,000

The binomial model is a generally accepted method of valuing share
options. The significant assumptions used in the calculation of the
values of the share options were risk-free interest rate, expected life
of share options, expected volatility and expected dividend vyield.
The measurement date used in the valuation model was the date on

which the share options were granted.

The values of share options determined using the binomial model
are subject to certain fundamental limitations, due to the subjective
nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of assumptions of
the expected future performance input to the model, and certain
inherent limitations of the model itself. The value of the share option
varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any
change to the variables used may materially affect the estimation of

the fair value of the share option.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company or a connected
entity of such Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share Option Scheme”,
neither at the end of nor at any time during the year there subsisted
any arrangement to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and the objects of or one of the objects of such
arrangement are/is to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the year.

INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws of the Company provides that every director of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
and profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses shall or may incur or sustain by
any act done or in the execution of their duties as a Director of the
Company, provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to
such Director. Directors Liability Insurance is in place to protect the
Directors of the Company or its subsidiaries against potential costs
and liabilities arising from claims brought against the Directors in

the executive of their duties.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31st March 2018, none of the Directors or substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective close
associates has engaged in any business that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group or has any other conflict of

interests with the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 24% of the Group’s total turnover and the largest
customer of the Group accounted for approximately 8% of the
Group’s total turnover. The five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 96% of the Group’s total purchases
and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately

92% of the Group'’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had a beneficial interest in the Group’s

five largest customers and suppliers noted above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the year
ended 31st March 2018.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on publicly available information, the Company maintains
a sufficient public float of more than 25% of the issued ordinary

shares as at the date of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

INFORMATION OF COMPLIANCE OFFICER AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

The compliance officer of the Company is Ms. Zhang Yifan. Ms.
Zhang is the Chairlady and an executive Director of the Company.
The biographical details of Ms. Zhang are set out on page 13 of this

annual report.

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Law Wai Fai. He is
also the chief financial officer of the Company. The biographical
details of Mr. Law are set out in section of “Profiles of Directors and

Senior Management” on page 17.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted

by the Company is set out on pages 18 to 35 of this annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2018 have
been audited by Ernst & Young who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for

reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited
Zhang Yifan

Chairlady

Hong Kong, 7th June 2018

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED itz RESIZRER AR

ERFTAERAAWEZESR

ARARZERFEAR—NLLT - RLETAEAR
RIEERNITES - RELZBEEABINAF
WE13HE o

ARRRZARMERERERE - BT/ ARRF]
ZHERE - BAEZBEAGERFI7TAIE
ENEREEAEEH ] -

EER

BRARRMEAETZLREAERZMETRN
RERFEIBEEFI5H o

B HE

KB EBHCERBE_T—N\F=A
=H—HUEFEZMBERE - MREEREER
RBEFRELRE AFAERIMEERE
£

REREFE

EEMIERAR LD H

TR

&—M

B8 —T-\FARALA



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURBERE

e
EY:

To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of North Asia
Strategic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to 188, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st March 2018,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31st March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
V% B AN R

To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit

addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion

on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

8 M % BED | E

To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

Impairment assessment of goodwill

As at 31st March 2018, the Company
had goodwill of approximately
HK$373.7 million relating to the
cash-generating unit (*CGU") of
hi-tech distribution and services.
In accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets, management
is required to test goodwill for

impairment annually.

We focused on this area because
this impairment test and assessment
is based on the recoverable amount
of the CGU as determined in a value-
in-use calculation, which required
significant management judgement
with respect to pre-tax cash flow
projection based on financial budget
approved by management covering
a five-year period. The projection
is largely based on management
expectations and estimates of future
results of the CGU.

Disclosures in relation to goodwill
are included in notes 4 and 15 to the

consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key

audit matter

Our audit procedures included
the assessment of the valuation
methodology and the key
assumptions, such as the
continuance of distribution rights
of hi-tech distribution and services
operation, budgeted gross margin
and the discount rate based on
our knowledge of the business and

industry.

We checked the input data to
supporting evidence, such as the
approved budgets and the recent
historical results of the CGU. We
also assessed the adequacy of
the disclosures in the financial

statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

M % SR

To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Recoverability of trade and bills receivables

As at 31st March 2018, the
Group had trade and bills
receivables of approximately
HK$385.5 million.

We focused on this area
because significant judgement
is required with regard to
recoverability assessment
of these receivables, with
reference to management’s
assessments on debtors based
on their repayment history,
financial position, reputation,
future transactions and

relationship with the Group.

Disclosures in relation to
trade and bills receivables are
included in notes 4 and 17
to the consolidated financial

statements.

We assessed the Group’'s
processes and controls relating
to the monitoring of receivables
to identify objective evidence of

impairment.

Qur procedures included
obtaining direct confirmations
on a sampling basis, checking
the ageing of receivable
balances, the debtors’ historical
payment patterns and the
bank receipts for the payment
received subsequent to the end
of the reporting period. We also
checked the evidence including
correspondence between the
parties involved for the latest
progress of the outstanding
balances and credit status of

these debtors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURBERE

To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBERS

To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURBERE

To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
V% SR R

To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is CHIU, Caroline Su Yuen.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

7th June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31st March 2018 HZE —

T \F=A=+—HLFE

2018 2017
=E2-N\F —ZE—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hat FET F&T
Continuing operations BEQSEER
Revenue A 5] 1,655,450 1,295,754
Cost of sales SHE R A (1,301,850) (1,086,142)
Gross profit EF 353,600 209,612
Other income and gains, net HEMA RS - F58 6 2,916 2,605
Selling and distribution expenses SHERDIHER (136,880) (102,045)
General and administrative —mRRITIHE R
expenses (90,713) (75,040)
Operating profit EEH T 128,923 35,132
Fair value gain on the derivative AHRBRESFITETEEH 2
component of convertible bond DR ERE 69 3,432
Finance income BRI 9 3,138 5,797
Finance costs % ER 9 (549) (1,471)
Profit before income tax from FBIEETE Z BRFTIS TR
continuing operations gl 7 131,581 42,890
Income tax expense FieHi i 10 (23,370) (8,133)
Profit for the year from continuing REFELEEE 2 FNEF
operations 108,211 34,757
Discontinued operation ISR
Loss for the year from a KE—BRIEEEEBR 2
discontinued operation FRNEE 11 — (4,136)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F AR 108,211 30,621
Earnings per share attributable AAEEBRREEGER
to ordinary shareholders of the 2
Company 1S]
Basic E-YiN
— For profit for the year — FR R A CEM)
(HK cents) 4.33 1.60
— For profit for the year from — BEBEEERZER
continuing operations s F CEML)
(HK cents) 4.33 1.81
(Restated)
(4E&EZ)
Diluted e
— For profit for the year — FRRFCEM)
(HK cents) 3.98 1.05
— For profit for the year from — BREBEEERZER
continuing operations s A CBML)
(HK cents) 3.98 1.20
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e EHEWE R

Year ended 31st March 2018 B —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FRET F&T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F W@ A 108,211 30,621
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hith 2 mE iz
Other comprehensive income to be REZHEER EEEZE 2
reclassified to profit or loss in HEe2mEmlas :
subsequent periods:
Currency translation differences of EINETS c B E =T
foreign operations 25,635 (1,745)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR  FRH b2 mEUzS -
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX OF NIL BREIRE TR 25,635 (1,745)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FRNEHEW=ETE
THE YEAR 133,846 28,876
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B BB K &

Year ended 31st March 2018 B —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—B-N\%F Tt

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Htat FHET FAET
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - = MRE 14 50,320 10,385
Intangible assets mILEE 15 373,692 373,692
Trade and other receivables B RWGIER
Eofth e kB 17 102,459 75,752
526,471 459,829
Current assets REEE
Held-to-maturity investments BRI EEE 16 — 46,419
Financial assets at fair value BRAREFABRZ
through profit or loss CRIEE 18 36,044 38,244
Derivative financial instrument PTEemIT A 19 1,010 —
Inventories =SS 20 133,511 4,405
Trade and other receivables B RUBFIER
H i fE R IE 17 816,987 301,821
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREeEEER 21 231,292 379,991
1,218,844 770,880
Total assets EEAE 1,745,315 1,230,709
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to shareholders Z<2 TR RE/LEER
of the Company
Issued capital BEITIRA 22 27,258 19,150
Reserves s 23 899,582 824,058
Total equity FERBE 926,840 843,208
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IR &

Year ended 31st March 2018 B —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Het F#T F#T
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REAE
Liability component of convertible AR ES 2 AEHD
bond 24 — 59,454
Derivative component of AMRESZHITET R
convertible bond 2B 24 — 241
Trade and other payables B Z N RIE R
E At T FRIE 25 745,845 292,498
Income tax liabilities FIsfHias 24,441 11,866
770,286 364,059
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIRAE 26 494 494
Deposits received Bz 27 47,440 22,509
Other non-current liabilities HEMIEmeala 255 439
48,189 23,442
Total liabilities 8BRS 818,475 387,501
Total equity and liabilities EERkEEHERE 1,745,315 1,230,709
Net current assets REBEERE 448,558 406,821
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZAEBERABHEE 975,029 866,650

Approved by the Board of Directors on 7th June 2018:

Zhang Yifan
w®R—IA

Chairlady and Executive Director

TERPITEF

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED bz RES =R ER AR

RIZB-NFRALRAEEESHE

Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming

#EH
Executive Director

HITEF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31st March 2018 B —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

A TRREN
Issued capital Reserves Total
BEBITRA #E wmct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
(note 22) (note 23)
(Ktat22) (Ktst23)
Balances as at 1st April 2016 R-ZT—XFWMAE—HZ
R 19,150 795,182 814,332
Comprehensive income 2HEKE
Profit for the year F N F — 30,621 30,621
Other comprehensive income — A2 EHz5
Currency translation HINETE 2 B IRE
differences of foreign =5
operations — (1,745) (1,745)
Total other comprehensive HEmM2EK=SERE
income — (1,745) (1,745)
Total comprehensive income FRE2MHKZEHEATE
for the year — 28,876 28,876
Balances as at 31st March RZE—tF=H
2017 and 1st April 2017 =t+—BR-ZT—+%F
WA—HZ#&#% 19,150 824,058 843,208
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31st March 2018 B —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

A E RREM
Share capital Reserves
;& &
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
(note 22) (note 23)
(Hist22) (K15t 23)
Comprehensive income 2HEKH
Profit for the year F A5 — 108,211 108,211
Other comprehensive income At 2 EHz5
Currency translation BINER 2 B
differences of foreign bt
operations — 25,635 25,635
Total other comprehensive Hih 2 E W25
income — 25,635 25,635
Total comprehensive income FREMHKEHEEE
for the year — 133,846 133,846
Special dividend paid ER AR R AR B
(note 12) (et 12) — (114,898) (114,898)
Issue of shares upon KA BBk ESR%E
conversion of convertible BITIRD (K17t 22(a))
bond (note 22(a)) 8,108 51,892 60,000
Equity-settled share-based VAR 15 72 B it 2 I e
transactions (note 22(b)) EER S (KiF22(b)) — 4,684 4,684
Balances as at 31st March RZZ—N\F
2018 =RA=+—Bz#&s% 27,258 899,582 926,840
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEETRER

Year ended 31st March 2018 HEZ=F—/\F=A=1+—HILFE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
At FRET FiETT
Cash flows from operating RETHZHERE
activities
Net cash flows used in operations LEMERACESREFE 28 (28,080) (184,247)
Interest paid BERFE (175) (172)
Mainland China corporate income B B A1 SEFT SR
tax paid (4,986) (666)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BERERENEE (5,809) (11,644)
Net cash flows used in operating KEEBFTERAZ
activities BenE$E (39,050) (196,729)
Cash flows from investing RETBHZHESRE
activities
Additions of property, plant and RNBEYE - BEREZE
equipment (54,791) (8,246)
Proceeds from disposal of items of  HEWE - MENKZEER
property, plant and equipment Z TS 3K0E 6,095 669
Interest received 2 U F 2 3,138 4,779
Purchases of held-to-maturity BEREIHBHITE
investments — (6,317)
Receipts upon maturity of held-to- = FIEEE 2 i EIE
maturity investments 38,597 32,241
Receipt upon early redemption of IRATERFED R E 2 BT
a held-to-maturity investment WRIE 7,972 —
Purchases of financial assets at BEARERIEANE
fair value through profit or loss PR CREE E (32,409) (155,652)
Receipts from sale of financial HEBBESEZANENER
assets at fair value through R E E 2 FTGRIE
profit or loss 34,258 117,408
Cash and cash equivalents PLHE —HRIEEEER
disposed of in respect of the FIEEzHeRBEEE
disposal of a discontinued HA
operation 11 — (416)
Net cash flows from/(used in) wEESFELS (FTER)
investing activities ZEEREFE 2,860 (15,534)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

Year ended 31st March 2018 B —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
At FRET FiETT
Cash flows from financing RETBHZHERE
activities
New bank loans FIGRITER 228,759 374,284
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (228,759) (373,266)
Special dividend paid BT EFRI B (114,898) —
Net cash flows (used in)/from REEE(FRER) FrEL
financing activities 2R emEFE (114,898) 1,018
Decrease in cash and cash RERRESEHEER
equivalents ZED> (151,088) (211,245)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYzHEeRESEE
beginning of year HA 379,991 592,646
Effect of foreign exchange rate NNEBERESH S HE
changes, net =2 2,389 (1,410)
Cash and cash equivalents atend FRZEERESZE
of year HH 231,292 379,991
Analysis of balances of cash and RERREZEEE
cash equivalents R
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFEE S 21 210,034 322,951
Non-pledged time deposits with REVSRRRTEIEAR
original maturity of three months R=MEASAT
or less when acquired B E BT 21,258 57,040
Cash and cash equivalents as RERE BRI KT
stated in the consolidated ZHERRSE
statement of financial position 5 H 231,292 379,991
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally

engaged in the following businesses during the year:

o hi-tech distribution and services: trading of surface
mount technology (“SMT”) assembly equipment,
machinery and spare parts and provision of related
installation, training, repair and maintenance services

for SMT assembly equipment;

. leasing: provision of finance to its customers via a wide
array of assets under finance lease arrangements and

operating lease arrangements; and
o investment holding.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 (the “Companies Act”). The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and that of its principal place of
business is 18th Floor, Shanghai Commercial Bank Tower, 12

Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand except when otherwise indicated.

These financial statements have been approved and
authorised for issue by the Company’s board of directors on
7th June 2018.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. GBEREEERE)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries EHEMBLARZER
Particulars about the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as EAARRREEWBARIZFIBLT ¢
follows:
Percentage
Place of Issued of equity
incorporation/ ordinary/ interest
registration registered held by
Name and business Principal activities share capital the Group
TR, BRTLER/ AEBERE
a% AR TEXH EMBRA RERAH
American Tec Company Limited Hong Kong Trading of SMT equipment HK$60,000,000 100%
ELEFRBARAH Bt and investment holding 60,000,00078 7T
SMTREE 5 IR E R
NAS American Tec (Suzhou) Co., People’s Republic Trading of electronic US$1,000,000 100%
Limited (ii), (iii) of China (“PRC")/ products, machinery 1,000,000 T
I ETRR (BRM)ERAF (1) K (iif) Mainland China and spare parts and
REAREME(HE]) provision of repair and
/B installation services
BTEM HAENTHM
BHURREEER
ZERE
North Asia Strategic (HK) Limited (i) Hong Kong Provision of management HK$1 100%
L RRE(ER)EBRAR() B services and investment 187
holding
RELERIRS IR EER
K EETEFRECRINBBAR ()% PRC/Mainland China Trading of electronic US$1,000,000 100%
(iii)A B,/ EAH products, machinery 1,000,000 % 7T
(“NAS American Tec (Shenzhen) Co and spare parts and
Limited”) (ii), (iii)" provision of repair and
installation services
BTEMD BERTHM
BHURREEE R
ZER
North Asia Financial Leasing PRC/Mainland China Provision of finance leasing US$30,000,000 100%
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (ii), (i) HE/HE R and operating lease 30,000,000 7T
L ERERE(LE)BRAR (i) R (ji) arrangements services
REMEHERCERERH
R

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED itI5 kB 1ERAR AT



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Notes:

(i) Shares of this company are held directly by the Company.
Shares of the other companies are held indirectly.

(i) These are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises established in the
PRC to operate for up to 30 years until 2023 to 2044.

(iii) ~ Not audited by Ernst & Young or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network.

The English name of this entity represents the best effort made
by management of the Company to directly translate its Chinese

name as no official English name has been registered.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation

of these financial statements are set out below. These policies

have been consistently applied to all the years presented,

unless otherwise stated.

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for the
derivative financial instrument, financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss and derivative component
of convertible bond, which have been measured at fair

value.
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 included in Disclosure of Interests in Other

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-

2016 Cycle

Entities: Clarification of the
Scope of HKFRS 12

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED it KB IEIRBRAE]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 201

T \F=H=+—8

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)

The nature and the impact of the amendments are

described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
Disclosure of the changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities provided in note 28(b) to the

financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 clarify that an entity,
when assessing whether taxable profits will be
available against which it can utilise a deductible
temporary difference, needs to consider whether
tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits
against which it may make deductions on the
reversal of that deductible temporary difference.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance
on how an entity should determine future taxable
profits and explain the circumstances in which
taxable profit may include the recovery of some
assets for more than their carrying amount. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group as the Group
has no deductible temporary differences or assets

that are in the scope of the amendments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 — £ —

2.

NE=ZR=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)

(c)

Amendments to HKFRS 12 clarify that the
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12, other than
those disclosure requirements in paragraphs B10
to B16 of HKFRS 12, apply to an entity’s interest
in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate,
or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an
associate that is classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group classified as held for
sale. The amendments have had no impact on the
Group’s financial statements as the Group does
not have any subsidiary classified as a disposal
group held for sale as at 31st March 2018 and
so no additional information is required to be
disclosed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% & Bﬁ i

31st March 2018 =

SEEE | S e

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

January 2018

January 2019

for adoption

Classification and Measurement of Share-based

Payment Transactions'
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Financial Instruments’

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Revenue from Contracts with Customers'
Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers'

Leases’

Insurance Contracts’

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures’

Transfers of Investment Property’

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’®

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28'

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below. Of those standards, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
will be applicable for the Group’s financial year ending
31st March 2019 and are expected to have an impact
upon adoption. Whilst management has performed a
detailed assessment of the estimated impacts of these
standards, that assessment is based on the information
currently available to the Group, including expectations
of the application of transitional provision options and
policy choices. The actual impacts upon adoption could
be different to those below, depending on additional
reasonable and supportable information being made
available to the Group at the time of applying the
standards and the transitional provisions and policy

options finally adopted.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— \F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August
2016 that address three main areas: the effects of
vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction; the classification of
a share-based payment transaction with net settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order to
meet an employee’s tax obligation associated with
the share-based payment; and accounting where a
modification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment transaction changes its classification
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments
clarify that the approach used to account for vesting
conditions when measuring equity-settled share-based
payments also applies to cash-settled share-based
payments. The amendments introduce an exception
so that a share-based payment transaction with net
share settlement features for withholding a certain
amount in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is
classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction when certain conditions are met.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms
and conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes
an equity-settled share-based payment transaction,
the transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled
transaction from the date of the modification. On
adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments
without restating prior periods, but retrospective
application is permitted if they elect to adopt for all
three amendments and other criteria are met. The Group
will adopt the amendments from 1st April 2018. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the
financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all
previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group will
adopt HKFRS 9 from 1st April 2018. The Group will not
restate comparative information and will recognise any
transition adjustments against the opening balance of
equity at 1st April 2018. During the year, the Group
has performed an assessment of the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 9. The expected impacts relate to
the classification and measurement and the impairment

requirements and are summarised as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 will have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial
assets. It expects to continue measuring at fair
value all financial assets currently held at fair

value.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (continued)

(b)

Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt
instruments recorded at amortised cost or at fair
value through other comprehensive income, lease
receivables, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts that are not accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss under HKFRS
9, to be recorded based on an expected credit
loss model either on a twelve-month basis or a
lifetime basis. The Group will apply the simplified
approach and record lifetime expected losses
that are estimated based on the present values of
all cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of
its trade receivables. Furthermore, the Group will
apply the general approach and record twelve-
month expected credit losses that are estimated
based on the possible default events on its
other receivables within the next twelve months.
Based on the assessment by the directors of the
Company, if the expected credit loss model is to
be applied by the Group, the accumulated amount
of impairment losses to be recognised by the
Group as at 1st April 2018 would be increased as
compared to the accumulated amount recognised
under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to the expected
credit loss provision on trade receivables. Such
further impairment recognised under expected
credit loss model would increase the opening

accumulated losses at 1st April 2018.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, issued in December 2017,
allow financial assets with prepayment features that
permit or require either the borrower or the lender to
pay or receive reasonable compensation for the early
termination of the contract to be measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income. The amendments clarify that a financial asset
passes the “solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding” criterion regardless
of the event or circumstance that causes the early
termination of the contract and irrespective of which
party pays or receives reasonable compensation for
that early termination. The Group expects to adopt
these amendments from 1st April 2019 and to apply
the exemption from restating comparative information
of prior periods. Any difference between the previous
carrying amount and the adjusted carrying amount will
be recognised in the opening balance of equity. The
amendments do not apply to the Group as the Group
does not have any debt instruments with prepayment
features along with compensation for early termination.
In addition, as clarified in the amendments to the basis
for conclusions on HKFRS 9, the gain or loss arising on
modification of a financial liability that does not result
in derecognition (calculated by discounting the change
in contractual cash flows at the original effective rate)
is immediately recognised in profit or loss. As there is
no specific relief on this clarification, this requirement
shall be applied retrospectively. The Group’s current
accounting policy is consistent with this clarification
and therefore the adoption of the amendments is not

expected to have any impact on the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements
in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting
for associates and joint ventures. However, the

amendments are available for adoption now.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new
five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and
key judgements and estimates. The standard will
supersede all current revenue recognition requirements
under HKFRSs. Either a full retrospective application
or a modified retrospective adoption is required on the
initial application of the standard. In June 2016, the
HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address
the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus
agent and licences of intellectual property, and
transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities
adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity
of applying the standard. The Group will adopt
HKFRS 15 from 1st April 2018 and plans to adopt the
transitional provisions in HKFRS 15 to recognise the
cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to
the opening balance of accumulated losses at 1st April
2018. In addition, the Group plans to apply the new
requirements only to contracts that are not completed
before 1st April 2018. The Group expects that the
transitional adjustment to be made on 1st April 2018
upon initial adoption of HKFRS 15 will not be material.
However, the expected changes in accounting policies,
as further explained below, will have an impact on
the Group’s financial statements from 1st April 2018
onwards. During the year, the Group has performed an
assessment on the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 201
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

The Group’s principal activities consist of the sale of
machinery and the provision of finance leasing and
operating lease arrangements. The Group provides
installation services for the sale of machinery. Currently,
installation services are bundled together with the
sale of machinery, as such, revenue from the sale of
machinery is recognised when significant risks and
rewards of ownership of goods have been passed to
the buyer. The Group has assessed that the installation
services bundled together with the sale of machinery
are not distinct and are considered as one single
performance obligations under HKFRS 15 because
the installation service is highly interrelated with the
sale of machinery and providing them into a functional
machinery that the customer contracted to receive.
Accordingly, the Group determined that revenue from
the sale of machinery with installation services is
recognised when the respective installation services are
completed under HKFRS 15.

In addition, the application of HKFRS 15 in the future
may result in more disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS
17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out
the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date
of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-
of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation

model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability
and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be
required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on
the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required
to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence
of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting
under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the
accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify all leases using the same classification principle
as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating
leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees
and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than
under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the

standard using either a full retrospective or a modified
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

retrospective approach. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 16 from 1st April 2019. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption and is
considering whether it will choose to take advantage of
the practical expedients available and which transition
approach and reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed
in note 31 to the financial statements, at 31st March
2018, the Group had future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate
of approximately HK$30,780,000. Upon adoption of
HKFRS 16, certain amounts included therein may need
to be recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be needed to
determine the amount of new rights of use assets and
lease liabilities to be recognised, including, but not
limited to, any amounts relating to leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases, other practical expedients
and reliefs chosen, and new leases entered into before

the date of adoption.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 40, issued in April 2017, clarify
when an entity should transfer property, including
property under construction or development, into or
out of investment property. The amendments state that
a change in use occurs when the property meets, or
ceases to meet, the definition of investment property
and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere
change in management’s intentions for the use of a
property does not provide evidence of a change in use.
The amendments should be applied prospectively to
the changes in use that occur on or after the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which the entity first
applies the amendments. An entity should reassess the
classification of property held at the date that it first
applies the amendments and, if applicable, reclassify
property to reflect the conditions that exist at that
date. Retrospective application is only permitted if it
is possible without the use of hindsight. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1st April 2018. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial

statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, issued in June 2017, provides
guidance on how to determine the date of the
transaction when applying HKAS 21 to the situation
where an entity receives or pays advance consideration
in a foreign currency and recognises a non-monetary
asset or liability. The interpretation clarifies that the
date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it) is
the date on which an entity initially recognises the
non-monetary asset (such as a prepayment) or non-
monetary liability (such as deferred income) arising from
the payment or receipt of the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance of
recognising the related item, the entity must determine
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration. Entities may apply the
interpretation on a full retrospective basis or on a
prospective basis, either from the beginning of the
reporting period in which the entity first applies the
interpretation or the beginning of the prior reporting
period presented as comparative information in the
financial statements of the reporting period in which the
entity first applies the interpretation. The Group expects
to adopt the interpretation prospectively from 1st April
2018. The interpretation is not expected to have any

significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, issued in July 2017, addresses the
accounting for income taxes (current and deferred)
when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain
tax positions”). The interpretation does not apply to
taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor does
it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii)
the assumptions an entity makes about the examination
of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an
entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts
and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the
use of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of application as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation from 1st April 2019.
The interpretation is not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31st March 2018. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities

of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over

an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting

rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated

until the date that such control ceases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in the statement
of profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the

related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host

contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss

is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— \F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for

within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in the statement of profit or loss as a gain

on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31st March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the

Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

2.5

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed

in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation of and the portion of the cash-

generating unit retained.
Fair value measurement

The Group measures the derivative financial instrument
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss at

fair value at the end of each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market

participants act in their economic best interest.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 201

2.

T \F=H=+—8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant

that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the

use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either

directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the

asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the

impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in

prior years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

T \F=H=+—8

31st March 201

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

()

has control or joint control over, the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 — £ —

2.

NE=ZR=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Segment reporting

2.9

Operating segments are reported in a manner

consistent with the internal reporting provided to the

chief operating decision-makers. The chief operating

decision-makers, who are responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the operating

segments,

have been identified as the executive

directors who make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s

functional currency.
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the statement

of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “finance income”
and “finance costs” respectively. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
statement of profit or loss within “other income and
gains” and “general and administrative expenses”,

respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 201

T \F=H=+—8

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as part of the fair value

gain or loss.
Group’s entities

The results and financial position of all the entities
within the Group (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities in the statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the end of the reporting
period;

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss
are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);

and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising

are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over joint
ventures that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the ordinary shareholders of the Company are

reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not
result in the Group losing control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences is
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and is
not recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions
in the Group’s ownership interest in associates
or joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to the statement of profit

or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 201

2.

T \F=H=+—8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its

working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific

useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repair and maintenance costs
are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the

financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful

life. Their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 2 to 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3 to 10 years

Motor vehicles 3 to 6 years
Plant and machinery and 3 to 10 years

demonstration machinery

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount

is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amounts and are

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11

2.12

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Customer relationships and distribution agreements are
shown at historical cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value
as at the date of acquisition. The Group’s intangible
assets have finite useful lives and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated

impairment losses.

Amortisation of customer relationships and distribution
agreements is calculated using the straight-line method

to allocate the cost over their estimated useful lives as

follows:
Customer relationships 3 to 4 years
Distribution agreements 3 years

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable

selling expenses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Leases

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases,
an amount representing the minimum lease payment
receivables and initial direct costs is included in the
statement of financial position as trade and receivables.
Any unguaranteed residual value is also recognised
at the inception of the lease. The difference between
the sum of the minimum lease payment receivables,
initial direct costs, the unguaranteed residual value and
their present value is recognised as unearned finance
income. Unearned finance income is recognised over
the period of the lease using the effective interest rate

method.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over

the lease terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Investments and other financial assets

2.14.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables or
as held-to-maturity investments, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial

assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include trade and
other receivables, derivative financial instrument,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
rental and other deposits and cash and cash

equivalents.

2.

EXRSTEERBEE)

214 RERHMWESMERE
214104 EER 52

EMEERNTHABOELR
BAREF AR SREE
BRI WFRRR EE R
BE(WER) - eMEERVZ
BERBRARLENRESRE
ERIGZXHKATE @ R
RAEFIRENBEEEZ ©
BREERID -

TRMEEZMBE-—REEHOR
XA AEEEFEEEZ
BEZAHER - —REE
AT IH R E REH —ARET
EZHRAXNEEZERE

rEEZEREERTESE
Yo SRR B H e W RRIE - 6T
AeMIA  BARBEFAR
BZeREE e REMEK
T UARBREIBRSEER
B o

2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT 3§

103



104

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 201
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2142 Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position
at fair value with positive net changes in fair
value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

Financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss
are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2142 Subsequent measurement (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance income in the statement of profit or loss.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in

the statement of profit or loss.
Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity are
classified as held to maturity when the Group
has the positive intention and ability to hold
them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments
are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less
any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance income in the statement of profit or loss.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in

the statement of profit or loss.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects

the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each of the reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or

economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not,
it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are

not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest

rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is
no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral

has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to

the statement of profit or loss.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED itz REZIZIRE R A A

2.

EXRSTEERBEZ)

2.16 sRMEERE(ZE)

BBEXAS Rz 2 HEE(F)

T ZREBRSBRZE
EZEREELE[BFRKRSRER
BIERERAREEZAREER
RIZEBAHE - At RAKRERE
RENEREEZ RAERM XA
RO HEREFTEZBERANE) I

B o
>t

ZEEZRHEEBERBBRM
R MERANBERRAER -
BRI REERAERERIE
B AEREIR R R IR R 8 2 M K £
BREMBUA - fif B &Y E 5R0R
ZHERERAARMAMEZE K
BEEETARE  AIMEERNRE
Yo k0 338 R {E ] AR R 344

WRERHE GEREBERESR
R FERRIBLE 18 B4 2 M hnsk
A - RIS T B R AR IR AN SO
DERIHER ZBERE o MR ER
YWma sy - ez RIBRINEBERER
MASR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 201

T \F=H=+—8

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Financial liabilities

2171 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as loans and borrowings, or as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings,

net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables and borrowings. Trade and other
payables are repayable upon receipt of invoices
and credit terms granted by suppliers are up to
90 days.

2172 Subsequent measurement

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through

the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the

statement of profit or loss.

2.

EXRSTEERBEE)

217 ¢@ERE
21711 R RETE

TRABERNSEABOER
ERREE  HDBREAR
BIRINEBRERE 2 ERE
B (@A) °

ﬁﬁ*ﬁigﬂﬁf MNFR R AR
R MERREENRAKE
KEAERZHARTER o

rEEZEREEREESE
I SRR B L A AN SRIB A K &
& BHRNKBEREEN
é”lﬁfﬁﬁ’\\ukﬁﬁéﬁﬂﬂéﬁ i}
HEFRL ZEEHRZ R0
H o

21728 %5 8

EHREER

ML HERE - (EEHZIRA
BB SRR A AN E
HEWBEIR 2 BT TEKX - Al
TEUL B T IRA AN BR © #R 1k
BREERBBERAN K
BREPEACZAEBSRIBER
NHER °

FHEEERAR S E BB
EEZETATEKLEE - TR
HEERERA R AT HERE D
ZERBKA o BB E#H
SPABBRRAZHBEER o

2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT 3R

109



110

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Financial liabilities (continued)

2172 Subsequent measurement (continued)

Convertible bond

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a
liability in the statement of financial position, net
of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible
bonds, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried
as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion or redemption.
The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option that is recognised and included
in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs.
The carrying amount of the conversion option is
not remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and
equity components of the convertible bonds
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability
and equity components when the instruments are

first recognised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. BEABHEEHBESE)
POLICIES (continued)

217 SREEE)

2.17.2H2 %58 (%)

2.17 Financial liabilities (continued)

2172 Subsequent measurement (continued)

Convertible bond (continued)

If the conversion option of convertible bonds
exhibits characteristics of an embedded
derivative, it is separated from its liability
component. On initial recognition, the derivative
component of the convertible bonds is measured
at fair value and presented as part of derivative
financial instruments. Any excess of proceeds
over the amount initially recognised as the
derivative component is recognised as the liability
component. Transaction costs are apportioned
between the liability and derivative components
of the convertible bonds based on the allocation
of proceeds to the liability and derivative
components when the instruments are initially
recognised. The portion of the transaction costs
relating to the liability component is recognised
initially as part of the liability. The portion relating
to the derivative component is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

2.17.3 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement

of profit or loss.
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2.

- \F=A=+—8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.20

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and

settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Derivative financial instrument

The Group’s derivative financial instrument does
not qualify for hedge accounting. They are initially
recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and is subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Changes in the fair value of this derivative
financial instrument is recognised in the statement of

profit or loss.
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three

months or less, and bank overdrafts.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits

which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &
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2.

T \F=H=+—8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

2.22

Share capital

Ordinary shares and non-redeemable preference shares
are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Ordinary
shares and non-redeemable preference shares are
classified as equity.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
tax authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries

in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of each reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

EXRSTEERBEZ)

2.22 Fri8®i(4&E)

2.22 Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be

utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to

be recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.23

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.
Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlement to annual leave and long
service leave is recognised when it accrues to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to

the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlement to sick leave and maternity

leave is not recognised until the time of leave.
(b) Pension obligations

The Group participates in defined contribution
plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays contributions to
state/trustee-administered funds on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised

as employment costs when they are due.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

(c) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses. It recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive

obligation.

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result
of past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in

the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense and included in finance costs in the

statement of profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of consideration

received or receivable for the sale of goods and

services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.

Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, rebates and

discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue is recognised on the following bases:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sales revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintain neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control

over the goods sold.

Commission, service and management fee

income

Commission, service and management fee income

is recognised when the services are rendered.
Finance leasing income

Finance leasing income is recognised on an
accrual basis using the effective interest method
by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of
the net investment of the finance lease or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying

amount of the net investment of the finance lease.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25

2.26

2.27

Revenue recognition (continued)
(d) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion

basis over the lease terms.
(e) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion

basis using the effective interest rate method.
(f)  Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been

established.

Advance payments received from customers prior to
the delivery of goods and the provision of services are

recorded as receipts in advance.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of that asset. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All
other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of

profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they

are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to

the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 201

3.

T \F=H=+—8

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair
value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the finance
department of the Company under policies approved
by the board of directors. The finance department
identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in
close co-operation with the Group’s operating units.
The board of directors provides written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial
instruments and non-derivative financial instruments,

and investment of excess liquidity.
(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally in Hong
Kong and Mainland China and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect
to the United States dollar (the “US dollar”),
Japanese Yen, and Renminbi (“RMB”).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign

operations.
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31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

()

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

Management has set up a policy to require
entities within the Group to manage
their foreign exchange risk against their
functional currencies. Foreign exchange risk
arises when future commercial transactions
or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the

entity’s functional currency.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk. Currency
exposure arising from the net assets of the
Group’s foreign operations is managed
primarily through borrowings denominated

in the relevant foreign currencies.

The Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the US
dollar (“US$") at a range of rates between
7.75 and 7.85, and therefore the foreign
exchange exposure between the US dollar

and the Hong Kong dollar is limited.
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31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

2018

If Yen weakens against HK$
If Yen strengthens against
HK$

If RMB weakens against HK$
If RMB strengthens against
HK$

If US$ weakens against RMB
If US$ strengthens against
RMB

2017

If Yen weakens against HK$
If Yen strengthens against
HK$

If RMB weakens against HK$
If RMB strengthens against
HK$

If US$ weakens against RMB
If US$ strengthens against
RMB

—E-N\F
fisl B B X B T2 (B

fisi A B BT HE

HMARBEETEE
M AR ETIHE

iMETTH AREEE
WETHAREHE
—T—tF

i BBl 2B T E

i B B BT HE

AR L BTRE
MAREEBTIE

HETAARERZE
HETHAARETHE

i B ()

3.1 BI¥EBREEE)
(a) HEEE(E)
() SMNERR(E)

Change in
exchange rates

Ex2H
%
%

11

1

11

11

15

15

Increase/
(decrease)

in profit

before tax from
continuing
operations
FRESEEKZ
BRBLATR TG A0,
(m2)
HK$'000

FET

6,513

(6,513)

(12,459)

12,459

(15,636)

15,636

(161)

161

1,336

(1,336)

(9,488)

9,488
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31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(if)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets at floating rates except
for cash and cash equivalents, its income
and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates.

The cash and cash equivalents earn interest
at floating rates and expose the Group to

cash flow interest rate risk.

The finance lease receivables earn interest
at fixed rates and expose the Group to fair

value interest rate risk.

The interest rate risk from financial liabilities
arises from borrowings. Borrowings that are
subject to variable rates expose the Group

to cash flow interest rate risk.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,

trade receivables and certain other receivables.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an appropriate
financial strength and an appropriate percentage
of down payment. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group regularly reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. The Group implements
its industry risk management system according
to its plan based on actual situation with a focus
on industry research, customer credit rating,
and understanding of the lessee’s operations
and financial condition. The Group also obtained
deposits from lessees as disclosed in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements. The
Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk, with exposure spreading over a number of

counterparties and customers.
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3.1

BBEBREE(E)
(b) FEmREME

EERBRREREMREEFE
HE  BEZEEFERETH
fto FE W FRIA

AEBCERBOR - AERRA
BEEEMBRENRINEE
B ERARIEZ TP ETTH
B REE IS HIET H A B
ERRF - ARERIRIURERE
W EE B E IR - o - NEE
S TE B 5 % £ (B i W R
ZAWEEHE - AFEERE D
AU [E 2 & BB IF B SR E
1B ARERBERERIZE
EEETERREERSR &
FRITERNE - B EEFIR
VA K% BB AR AN 2 75 B B 75
AR o BANAR & BF TS R I &
27 PR EE - ANEE TR A A
WEZRE -  AEELEEKRE
hzEERR  ERERS A
ERZHFIRER o

2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT 3§

123



124

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The carrying amount of the receivables included
in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to these financial assets. The
credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances
is considered by the Group to be minimal as the
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy

banks with no recent history of default.

No credit limits were exceeded during the
reporting period, and management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by
counterparties. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security except for finance leasing
operation, which in the event of default, the Group
may demand return of finance leasing assets,
repossession of finance leasing assets or disposal

of finance leasing assets, whichever appropriate.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities and
the ability to close out market positions. Due to
the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining availability under committed credit

lines.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group provides an entrusted finance lease
on behalf of a trustor, which is recorded off-
balance sheet. The Group, as a trustee, provides
such entrusted finance lease to lessor under
the direction of the trustor who funds this
arrangement. The Group has been contracted
by the trustor to manage the administration and
collection of the receivables of the finance lease
on its behalf. The trustor determines both the
underwriting criteria for and the terms of the
entrusted finance lease including its purposes,
amount, interest rate, and repayment schedule.
The Group charges an administrative charge
related to its activities in connection with the
entrusted finance lease which is recognised
ratably over the period in which the service is

provided. The credit risk remains with the trustor.

As at 31st March 2018, the respective designated
receivable and payable was HK$19,022,000
(2017: nil).

3.
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3.1

MERAKREE(E)
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31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity

requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group’s liquidity reserve which comprises
undrawn borrowing facilities and cash and
cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash
flows. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, and to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEREKREE#E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEEBEEZE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) mEEZELEE(E)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TRUAFERRZESLHEHA
liabilities by maturity based on the remaining ZFRIAREERELE - RHHA
period at the end of the reporting period to the HAEESRBEETON -
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed RAFMEEZREAEB LR
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash REEME °
flows.
On demand or
less than 1to5
1 year years Total
RERA—FUR -ZHE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FATL
At 31st March 2018 R-Z-N§=A=t-H
Trade and other payables B 5 RN IERE MM 725,824 — 725,824
Deposits received Biize 20,021 47,440 67,461
745,845 47,440 793,285
At 31t March 2017 W-2—tE=A=1-B
Trade and other payables B SR HIE R AWM TIE 285,882 — 285,882
Deposits received Biike 6,616 22,509 29,125
Convertible bond AR ES 60,000 — 60,000
352,498 22,509 375,007
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new

shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

During the year ended 31st March 2018, the Group’s
strategy, which was unchanged from last year, was
to maintain net cash position. Net cash position is
calculated as cash and cash equivalents less interest-
bearing bank borrowings (as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position). The net cash positions
as at 31st March 2018 and 31st March 2017 were
analysed as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents and net R&£NESEEEEH KBS
SFEEAR L (K1 5E21)

cash position (note 21)

3.

I LBy B ()

3.2

EXEBER

AEEEREAZ BRI RERER
SERAEBERBFBELEEEL
2 NEIERREEREAMEDE
M UREREEZERNRER
DERRA -

REFIFARELRRE  ~NEEA
HERNERZEE2E  RAKRE
BHREEXR BOFBRMHRLEEREE
IE
REBE-_Z-N\F=A=+—HIF
B AREHREFIRE  G5F
B - FREANTIIRRE RIR
SEEBABRFERTEERES
MBRARAR)AE - RZF—N
F=A=+—HRZZE—tH$=5
=t —RZFRSHANIITAT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TIETT
231,292 379,991
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. UBEREREE)
3.3 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial 3.3 2RMIACZARBERAALBESER
instruments
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s rEEemIT AREERARES
financial instruments, other than those with carrying EREERIN ZEBERA BT
amounts that reasonably approximate to their fair values, T

are as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE ARE

2018 2017 2018 2017
TE-N\F EESaRcall — T — )\ et

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET T&T FET TET

Financial assets SREE
Held-to-maturity BEIHKRE
investments — 46,419 — 46,756
Carrying amounts Fair values
IRTEE ARE
2018 2017 2018 2017
TE-N\F il — T — /\F [kl
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FET FET FAET
Financial liabilities ERBE
Liability component of AR ESF 2
convertible bond BEHS — 59,454 — 56,627
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3.

NE=ZR=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and
trade and other payables approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to short term maturities of these

instruments.

The Group’s corporate finance team is responsible
for determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value measurement of financial instruments. The
corporate finance team reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities
are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of finance lease receivables have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The carrying amounts of finance lease receivables
approximate to their fair values.

The fair values of held-to-maturity investments and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
relating to investments in short-term money market fund

are based on quoted market prices.

The Group has entered into a forward currency contract,
which is a derivative financial instrument, with a financial
institution, and the fair value of the derivative financial
instrument is determined using forward exchange
market rates at the end of the reporting period.
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31st March 2018 —E— \F=A=+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

The fair value of the derivative component of convertible
bond is the difference between the fair value of
convertible bond and the fair value of the liability
component of convertible bond, i.e., present value of the
liability component of convertible bond. The fair value
of convertible bond has been estimated using valuation
techniques for which inputs with a significant effect on
the recorded fair value are not based on observable
market data. The Group’s derivative component of the
convertible bond was categorised in Level 3 of the fair

value measurement as at 31st March 2017.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of the derivative component of the
convertible bond and unlisted financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss as at 31st March 2017

Significant
Valuation unobservable
technique input
RERD EXATABE
WARE
Convertible bond Trinomial option Risky discount rate
AR ES pricing model [2\ B B 3R K
ZEA SR TEEERR
Unlisted financial N/A Estimated return
assets at fair TERA rate
value through EREEETES

profit or loss
BRAREFARBSEZIEE
MoREE

The directors believe that the estimated fair values
resulting from the valuation technique, which are
recorded in the statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which are recorded in
the statement of profit or loss, are reasonable, and that
they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period.

3.

%

B35 R b S 18 (&)

3.3

16.16

16.16

2.8

2.8

THIAZARERAABER
(%)

@R ESTETARD ZRAE
R BB E SR A E R R E 5
BREFPAAEAIIREESE
BEBOCHE)ZERE - AT Q%

FZARENAGEERTGGER

EE@%@&EZE@)\%@E%@@F%
RABERMESBRBEZEARARE
EEEAFE - R_ZE—1LF=H
=t—B AEEABEREFZOT
ETAIDHEBERAAEFERR

o

UTRR-_ZE—tF=A=+—H
AgkEFREAAEFABRGEZ
FEMERMEEZTET AR
BEZEATAERBARMBHRE

Sensitivity of
fair value to
the input
DAEHEARE
ZHBE

0.5% increase/(decrease) in
discount rate would result in
decrease/(increase) in fair
value by HK$2,000

BREEF/(TH)0.5% BEH
ARERD,/(3E) 2,000/ 7T

3% increase/(decrease) in
estimated rate of return
would result in a increase/
(decrease) in fair value by
HK$174,000

st EREE M, CRD) 3% 158
HAREREM (R ) 174,000
/%713

EEHE ABERDFHZ A
AABEERM BN ERAR) KA
nEZHBZEH(ERNBERAR)
HBEEE YARBEMRZIHKE
=EE-
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. UBEREEE)
3.3 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial 3.3 2WMIACZARBERAALBESER
instruments (continued) (&)
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRHERAEEERMITAZAAE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: HEEL
Assets measured at fair value: INARBEEEZEE
As at 31st March 2018 R=B-NF=ZA=+-—H

Fair value measurement using
MATISEETZARETE
Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
EXATBRE EXTAEE
TSR E BAHE WARE
(& 5—) (&B1=) (BHB=)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets at fair value &A% B ABE
through profit or loss ZERMEE 36,044 — — 36,044
Derivative financial THEEMIA
instrument — 1,010 — 1,010
As at 31st March 2017 R-ZE—+t&=A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

FATHRRETZ AR BERE

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

BAABR EATAER

TI5RE N 26 3 BARE
(& 51—=) (A=) (#A=) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FHET FHET

Financial assets at fair value &A% Eit AR

through profit or loss ZERMEE 32,600 — 5,644 38,244
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEREKREE#E)
3.3 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial 3.3 ERMIAZARBERAABSER
instruments (continued) (&)
The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 FRN - E=RRAAEFEZLHN
during the year are as follows: T
PLRE:] 2017
—E-N\F —FT—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets at fair value BAREABREZ
through profit or loss: CRVEE
At beginning of year RER 5,644 —
Fair value gain recognised in the RERRANERZ ARE
statement of profit or loss W == 19 —
Additions NE — 5,644
Disposals k= (5,663) —
At end of year REFL — 5,644
Liabilities measured at fair value: WARBEFEZERE
The Group did not have any financial liabilities R-ZE—N\F=A=+—H  &x&
measured at fair value as at 31st March 2018. B EFMUN AR BSEZSHE
&
As at 31st March 2017 R=-FB—tFE=H=+—H

Fair value measurement using
FATIEEETZ AR B E

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

BEXRAHE ERTAEHRE

M5 RE B ABE B ABE
(A&51—) (&B1=) (&B1=) B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET

Derivative component of AR ESR 2

convertible bond PTHET B — — 241 241
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3

3.

I LBy B ()

(%

33 FRMIAZARBERAAEBEER

ZR=DREFERFRAZES N

during the year are as follows: N
2018 2017
—E-N\F —FT—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Derivative component of convertible A #& &% 2
bond: PTETERES -
At beginning of year RER] 241 3,673
Fair value gain recognised in the RIBz R AR
statement of profit or loss IR € (69) (3,432)
Conversion of convertible bond RBBRRES (172) —
At end of year REF L - 241

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets

and financial liabilities (2017: Nil).

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED bz RES =R ER AR

FA -peREERERAGEMS
FRl—BBHN AR EFEZHEIL

BER SR =E

DfEHEW

AREH(ZFT—LF: &) -
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom reflect the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below.

4.1 Impairment assessment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting
policies stated in note 2.4 and note 2.6 to the financial
statements. For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired has been allocated to individual cash-
generating units which are reviewed for impairment
based on forecast operating performance and cash
flows. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit has been determined based on value
in use calculations. Cash flow projections are prepared
on the basis of reasonable assumptions reflective

of prevailing and future market conditions, and are

discounted appropriately.

B E e R A

AEERBBELBRIEMER(BEHE
BRABATHEBABZ RKREMH 2TEH)
Fr BT P E 2 [T R HI i

AEBHRRELEFREBR - AB2E
AHERTIEER - RO G RRABEERG
R-GFHEEARREFAHT —MBFE
BEMBERAEFEHERFRZMA R
RERATamA T

41 BHEREME

AEBERBY B HRERME2.4 RHTE
26MF g K - BFRAABE
BEARHBREMRE - sURERAT
B ORBERENOEZEMEMNRE
EEEMN - MABEMDRERNE
BRARESRERIME - BE
R EEL BN Z AR E S RIZE
REEFELEET - ReRERR
BARBRIRITRART R A ER
R WHBERETRER

2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT 3§

135



136

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.2

4.3

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets with finite
lives are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value
in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset
or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash

flows.

Estimated recoverability of trade and other

receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
This assessment is based on its customers’ repayment
history, financial position, reputation, future transactions
and relationship with the Group, which requires the use
of judgements and estimates. Management reassesses

the provision at the end of each reporting period.
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S 75 3 B &
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.4

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. Significant judgement is
required in determining the amount of the provision
for income taxes. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is

made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally
relate to tax losses, depends on management’s
expectation of future taxable profit that will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

4.

BEEsH i RHEw)

4.4

FrE®

REE T RERE NP B A 2
FEH EEEMSEHRERSRE
AEHBERHAE - ERAFEBBRE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

5.1

5.2

Revenue

Revenue represents sales of goods, commission
and other service income and income from leasing
arrangements. The amounts of each category of revenue
from continuing operations recognised during the year

are as follows:

5.

51 WA
WAEHEER B2 kEMRY

WARBELZHERA - REFEKL
BRI ZERRARFRIER
SEEMT ¢

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Sales of goods HEE M 1,486,610 1,265,364
Commission and other service e REMRBUA

income 136,008 21,361
Income from leasing arrangements  HEZEERA 32,832 9,029
1,655,450 1,295,754

Operating segment information 52 KEI\ER

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into two major reportable operating segments — hi-
tech distribution and services, and leasing operation.
The hi-tech distribution and services operating segment
derives revenue from the sale of goods, commission and
other service income. The leasing operating segment
derives revenue from finance leasing and operating

lease arrangements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

5.2

Operating segment information (continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss,
which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before
income tax. The adjusted profit/loss before income
tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit/
loss before tax except that finance income, finance
costs, fair value gain/loss from the Group’s financial
instruments as well as corporate and other unallocated

expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, other non-current assets,
inventories and trade and other receivables. Unallocated
assets comprise cash and cash equivalents, derivative
financial instrument, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments and

corporate and others.

Segment liabilities consist primarily of trade and other
payables, deposits received and other non-current
liabilities. Unallocated liabilities comprise deferred tax
liabilities, income tax liabilities, convertible bond and

corporate and others.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property,

plant and equipment.

5.

WARDEEHR(

5.2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —&=— \&=H=+—H

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDSEERE)
(continued)
5.2 Operating segment information (continued) 52 RESEER(E)

RBE-T—N\FR-_T—+F=
A=Z+—HLFE 8L08[HY
segments during the years ended 31st March 2018 and BEAHE FARBLEELZ

There are no significant sales between the operating

2017. The operating results from continuing operations REFREWT -

for the year are as follows:

Year ended 31st March 2018
HZ-Z-\E=A=+-HLEE

Hi-tech
distribution
and services Leasing
operation operation
ENEER
PHER RS HE
£ £
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET FET
Revenue /N
— Sales to external customers — HANRPHE 1,622,618 32,832 1,655,450
Segment results PEEE 141,368 15,415 156,783
Fair value gain on the derivative A EFTAETAE D
component of convertible bond Z AR ERE 69
Finance income BT A 3,138
Finance costs BHER (549)
Corporate and other unallocated (¥ REMADEER
expenses (27,860)
Profit before income tax B BT 15 74 A 131,581
Income tax expense Bz (23,370)
Profit for the year from continuing RABELLEKZFE
operations il 108,211
Capital expenditure EENEE 19,852 34,939 54,791
Depreciation nE 2,649 7,863 10,512
Corporate and other unallocated ~ M¥REMADEFE
depreciation 964
11,476
Gain on disposal of items of HEME « BEL&E
property, plant and equipment JEA 2 178 537 715
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B 7% R MY R

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

5.2 Operating segment information (continued)

5. WARSEER @)

52 RKESWERE)

Year ended 31st March 2017
BE-T—+tE=-A=+—HLEFE

Hi-tech
distribution
and services Leasing
operation operation Total
BHRER
288 R R HE ‘
£ £ it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
Revenue N
— Sales to external customers — HINEFHE 1,286,725 9,029 1,295,754
Segment results NEEE 62,492 1,294 63,786
Fair value gain on the derivative  A[BIRESITAETAZHH
component of convertible bond 2R ERE 3,432
Finance income A 5,797
Finance costs B & A (1,471)
Corporate and other unallocated ~ EREMEHEEH
expenses (28,654)
Profit before income tax BR BT 158 A 7 42,890
Income tax expense FrEfs (8,133)
Profit for the year from continuing  REHELLEL 2 FRN
operations ikl 34,757
Capital expenditure BARHX 1,075 4,786 5,861
Corporate and other unallocated ¥R E A EER
capital expenditure 53 2,385
8,246
Depreciation ne 1,624 775 2,399
Corporate and other unallocated ~ ¥REMADEFE
depreciation 879
3,278
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BERREZ
plant and equipment B (407) = (407)
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31st March 2018 —&=— \&=H=+—H

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(continued)

WARZBEER &)

5.2 fSH5EAN(E)
SRR 2 HRAERAENT :

5.2 Operating segment information (continued)

The segment assets and liabilities at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

142

At 31st March 2018

ASSETS
Segment assets
Unallocated assets:
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial
instrument
Cash and cash equivalents
Corporate and others

Total assets per the
consolidated statement of
financial position

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities:
Deferred tax liabilities
Income tax liabilities
Corporate and others

Total liabilities per the
consolidated statement of
financial position

R-ZE-NE=H
=t+—H
BE
DEEEE
APBEE :
//:\\/LL\ n'I'ATE’\
ZEMEE
TEEMIA

RekREFERA
EREM

BaRBRRARAZ
BESH

AafE

/\)KEE{

AoBLAE
MLHEQL
=
R EAM

BeRBRARAZ
R E#E

Hi-tech
distribution
and services Leasing
operation operation
BNRER
2K R HE
E) S ES)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
1,043,238 428,724 1,471,962
36,044
1,010
231,292
5,007
1,745,315
679,586 112,618 792,204
494
24,441
1,336
818,475
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDSEERE)
(continued)
5.2 Operating segment information (continued) 52 RESEER(E)
Hi-tech
distribution
and services Leasing
operation operation Total
=EHRE @
o 85 K PR
ES0 HEEK Feb
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
At 31st March 2017 R=Z—tF=h
=+—H
ASSETS BE 509,911 250,526 760,437
Segment assets DEEE
Unallocated assets: AOBREE :
Financial assets at fair value BARBIAER
through profit or loss ZERMEE 38,244
Held-to-maturity investments BEERE 46,419
Cash and cash equivalents ReKkReEEEE 379,991
Corporate and others 1R R HA 5,618
Total assets per the RAMBIRRARALZ
consolidated statement of BEHS
financial position 1,230,709
LIABILITIES =4
Segment liabilities NEERE 237,525 76,783 314,308
Unallocated liabilities: ROEBE :
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBA R 494
Income tax liabilities s as 11,866
Derivative component of AR ESR2ITE
convertible bond TA#D 241
Liability component of RRkEFzE8E
convertible bond b 59,454
Corporate and others ¥ REAM 1,138
Total liabilities per the RAEMBIRRARALZ
consolidated statement of BEEE
financial position 387,501
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31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

5.2 Operating segment information (continued)
Geographical information
(a) Revenue from external customers

The Group’s activities are conducted predominantly
in Hong Kong, Mainland China and the rest of Asia.
Revenue by geographical location is determined on
the basis of the destination of shipment of goods
for the hi-tech distribution and the location of the
customers by the leasing operating segment.

The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’s revenue from continuing operations by

geographical location:

5.

WARDEER (&)

52 RKESEERE)

HEER

(a) KEHIES KA
AEBEEBIENEE  PH
M B BN B At i JT AT o 4R
IR E B D 2 WARE R
Emn N ES M2 B oKk
HELENREP ZEME

.
iE °

TREHZBUEE D Z A
SEZHBERLLEEBRAD
1

2017
—E—+F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FEr

The PRC including Hong Kong FE(BESS) 1,624,446 1,281,658
Asia — others oM — Efb 31,004 14,096
1,655,450 1,295,754

(b)  Non-current assets

The non-current assets geographical information is
not presented since over 90% of the Group’s non-
current assets are located in the PRC (including
Hong Kong).

Information about major customers

During each of the years ended 31st March 2017 and
2018, there was no single customer that contributed

10% or more of the Group’s revenue for these years.
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6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6. Htt ARz B

AEEZEMB AR SRR FELE

An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains, net from

continuing operations is as follows:

)2 T

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FAET
Gain on disposal of obsolete stocks HEREFTE 2 W= — 99
Gain on disposal of items of property, HE®E - WMENMREHEB
plant and equipment Z W 715 —
Fair value gain on derivative financial 144 T A2 AR EWE
instruments 415 =
Change in fair value of financial BARBEFABEZEREEY
assets at fair value through profit or AREZ
loss 244 —
Income received on early redemption 1251 E B = 2 5% & i A
of held-to-maturity investments 150 ==
Net foreign exchange gains HINE I 75 5 FE — 2,301
Others Hi 1,392 205
2,916 2,605
7. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. BRETGHANEFR

AEBEREFELEEB 2BAEHATR
ek, GIA) TSR :

The Group’s profit before income tax from continuing
operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

PLRE:] 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt et FET F&T
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAR 1,250,184 1,077,481
Other costs Hfth A 51,666 8,661
Cost of sales SHE AR 1,301,850 1,086,142
Net foreign exchange loss/(gains) SNEEIE,(Was ) 358 1,074 (3,319)
Depreciation of property, plant and Yz - BB REHITE
equipment 14 11,476 3,278
Employment costs BB 8 118,447 109,963
Minimum lease payments under REgEHE &K
operating leases &R 13,776 13,119
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEME - BFE RRE
property, plant and equipment, net BHZER
(Wzs) - F58 (715) 407
Auditor’s remuneration =SB & 1,930 2,080
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS

An analysis of employment costs including the emoluments

of the directors and chief executive and the five highest paid

R 1R AA

SEREEBZREBRA(BREELRES
TBRABZMERAEREHEALTZHE)

2

individuals from continuing operations is as follows: DT :
2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Directors’ fees E-2okn 1,200 1,200
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e ERREYH =
kind 108,485 104,241
Discretionary bonuses BIBIELL 3,763 3,544
Equity-settled share option expenses  MARHEAE 2 BAAER X 4,684 =
Retirement benefits — defined BRIKEH — REHKETS
contribution schemes 315 978
118,447 109,963

(a)

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the Group (the employer) and each of its employees
make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income as defined under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The monthly contribution of each of the employer and
employees is subject to a cap of HK$1,500 (2017:
HK$1,500) per employee and any further contributions

are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland
China, the Group contributes to state-operated
retirement plans for its employees in Mainland China.
The employees contribute fixed percentages of their
basic salaries as required by the local authorities while
the Group contributes a further amount as required
by the local authorities. The Group has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits beyond these contributions. The
state-operated retirement plans are responsible for the

entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.
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8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules,
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, is as follows:

Salaries,

allowances

and benefits

A 2% NE P
(b) EERESTHRAEMS

RIEGEM ERA] - BB A FIEH
%383(1)(a) * (b) * (c) (N 1& K
TRBEEFRER) BPIE 2 B
B ENEERRSTHABFH
mF :

Equity-  Employer’s
Discre- settled contributions

tionary share option to retirement

in kind bonuses expenses scheme
Hée RER DRESE,  BfGHEz
ENRIE METAL  BRERX 30
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FAr FAr 7 Fhr FEr FEr
2018 Z8-N\%
Executive directors #irEs
Ms. Zhang Yifan F-Nxt 240 3,000 2,000 1,743 18 7,001
Mr. Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming GERLA 240 2,340 540 128 18 3,266
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Kenneth Kon Hiu King TEYEE 240 - - 128 - 368
Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse REREE 240 - - 128 - 368
Mr. Joseph Chan Nap Kee RUEEE 240 - - 128 - 368
1,200 5,340 2,540 2,255 36 11,371
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31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued) 8. fEMmA#)
(b) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (b) EERBRETHRAEM&(E)
(continued)
Salaries, Employer's
allowances contributions

and benefits ~ Discretionary  to retirement

Fees in kind bonuses scheme Total
e RER RIRGHEIZ
e Eila BB EEHH 28
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FiET TET FET
2017 ZE-tF
Executive directors HTES
Ms. Zhang Yifan" K—ixt" 240 1,500 1,500 18 3,258
Mr. Pierre Tsui Kwong Ming BERLE 240 2,160 153 18 2,571
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEES
directors
Mr. Kenneth Kon Hiu King FBESEE 240 — — — 240
Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse ~ ZBA%AE 240 — — — 240
Mr. Joseph Chan Nap Kee Ry EfR4E 240 — — — 240
1,200 3,660 1,653 36 6,549
There was no other arrangement under which a director REBEEZ_ZE—N\FR_FT—+tF=
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the B=+—BULtEE HEEHEES
years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017. WEXRERETMSHTMN s ML
B o
U Appointed on 6th November 2014 and appointed as 0 R-F—NE+—ANAEZERR
chairlady on 23rd June 2016 —E—XNEANA+=BEZEAEE
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8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued) 8.

BIBAA ()
TEBREHFAL

AEERFAME SRS 2ABATLT
BREME(CE—LE: WE)E
Z HEMEBEREXZHRZHME
R FARMNARSERHFALZ
BlemT

(c) Five highest paid individuals (c)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include 2 (2017: 2) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments payable to the five

highest paid individuals during the year are as follows:

2017
—E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Salaries, allowances and e RRREL
bonuses 11,118 18,885
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 5,730 1,500
Equity-settled share option ARG i H 7 BB IR R S
expenses 2,301 —
Employer’s contributions to RIRET B2 B E 4R
retirement scheme 170 97
19,319 14,952

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals fell

hEHESFALHMEETIIEER

within the following bands:

2017

—E—+F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A# A#

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 %t % 3,000,000 %5 7T 1 3
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 # T2 3,500,000 % 7T 3 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T % 4,000,000 % 7T — 1
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 7c % 7,500,000 77T 1 —
5 B
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31st March 2018 ZZ—\F=A=+—H

9. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9. HHKWAKRER
An analysis of finance income and costs from continuing HELCEEB 2V BERARERS TN
operations is as follows: T 8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HteE FET FAET
Finance income: MW A -
Interest income from bank RITFRZ M EWA
deposits 2,035 1,758
Interest income from held-to- REIMREZFE
maturity investments A 1,103 3,021
Net foreign exchange gains on AL A R B HNE Y 2
financing activities A — 1,018
3,138 5,797
Finance costs: BEER
Interest on bank loans IRITERZF B 84 172
Amortisation of the liability AMREFEES S
component of convertible ek ic
bond 24 374 1,299
Net foreign exchange loss on A& BB INE B 18 5 5
financing activities 91 —
549 1,471
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% & Bﬁ i

31st March 2018 =

10.

SEEE | S e

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
2035. Hong Kong profits tax has been calculated at the rate
of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year.

Subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject to
Mainland China corporate income tax at the standard rate of
25% (2017: 25%).

Taxation on overseas (other than Hong Kong and Mainland
China) profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profits for the year at the applicable rates of
taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
For the year ended 31st March 2018, NAS

American Tec (Shenzhen) Co. Limited, a subsidiary of the

operates.

Company, was entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% as it is
recognised as a high technology enterprise.

10.

P&z

RARER RN ERENBEE T
ZHE - FBNEHBFEANMGTERRE
FIRFE16.5% (ZF—+ 4 : 16.5%) 5t

s
B o
=AF

AR B A AR ST 2 BT B A B B 1% 25% (=
T+ F 25%) IEERRBMNTREA
SR o

GINE A KRB LASN) @ A 2 BLIE TY
HERNZ A ERT S TR AN EB LA
ErEERER RITERAREGHE - & F

—N\F=ZA=+—RHLEFE dRAE
ARIMB AR EETEFRIZHCORINDE
[RAR](NAS American Tec (Shenzhen)
Co. Limited) MR /= EMEE - &
EZH15% FHEES -

The amounts of income tax expense from continuing RérEBaR AR FECEEBEH
operations recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or Y HEREE
loss represent:
2017
—E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FAET
Current taxation EHNIA
Hong Kong profits tax BEBRNEB
— current year — AEE 20,590 6,611
Mainland China corporate income B A1 ¥ TS R
tax
— current year — AFEE 3,239 1,522
— over-provision in prior year — BEFEBEEE (459) —
23,370 8,133
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
income tax from continuing operations at the statutory rates
for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority
of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the
effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates

(i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as

FREBITH (42)

BARRREKRIOMBARMERDEE
BEIEREAE ERFERE XK
PS50 A A ) B2 12 B PR B R 51 B 2 TR B
XZHER URBERBR(BVEERK) &
BERBE2HROT

follows:
2017
—T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax W AT 45 50 A s A 131,581 42,890
Tax credit calculated at the average  REAREEREAEERREF 2
domestic tax rates applicable FHEREFE Y
to profits in the respective I %
jurisdictions 24,432 7,781
Tax effect of: TR E
— income not subject to tax — BARBTZBA (4,629) (3,910)
— expenses not deductible for tax — Az H 3,079 3,087
— Adjustments of current tax — AR B RN AR IE
in respect of previous periods AR (459) —
— tax losses not recognised — RERZHIBEEE 1,018 1,484
— tax losses utilised — EBAZHEEE (71) (309)
Tax expense HMIEX H 23,370 8,133

For the year ended 31st March 2018, the weighted average
applicable tax rate was 18.6% (2017: 18.1%). The change
in the weighted average applicable tax rate is caused by a
change in the profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in the

respective jurisdictions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

11.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION 11. ARIEREEFK
On 4th November 2016, the Company entered into a sale RZTE—X"F+—HAEA " A2F
and purchase agreement to dispose of its entire interests in A BEE W& LS H ®RDragon
Dragon Mining Overseas Limited and its subsidiaries (the Mining Overseas Limited & H [ff B &
“Dragon Group”) and assignment of loan to Mr. Leung Kar Fai, Al([Dragon& & |) v 2Pz - WHEE
a director of a subsidiary of Dragon Mining Overseas Limited, — I8 & X ¥ Dragon Mining Overseas
who was not a connected person of the Company as defined Limited ¥ — BB AR E S LA 4L -
under the GEM Listing Rules. The consideration was at HK$1. BIWIEARNAAEAT(EERGEM £
The Dragon Group was engaged in the provision of advisory #A) o REAR/1EIL - DragonEE#E H
services in mining exploration, exploitation and valuation REREDE  FEEXREEEE GEERS
services for merges and acquisitions projects. The disposal of Z B R - & Dragon B YA A%
the Dragon Group was because the Group had streamlined its BEReEEHEEBEREERSRBEERD
businesses and focus on the operation of hi-tech distribution SH BRI 2B EFHE S ©
and services division and leasing division.
Upon the disposal of the Dragon Group on 4th November R=—ZF—"F+— AMABEEDragon%k
2016, the results from the Dragon Group were no longer E1& - Dragon& B 2 ¥ & T BT ALRE
included in the Group’s results. B2 34 -
2017
—E—tF
HK$’000
TFET
Net assets disposed of: &2 BEFE :
Trade and other receivables B 5 PR IA & E A FE MR IR 18,827
Cash and cash equivalents RekRE&FEHER 416
Trade and other payables B 5 FE - 518 R H R A 3RIE (720)
Income tax payables FEAS PR HE (18,676)
(153)
Gain on disposal of a discontinued operation AR AR R TS 2 W s 153

Satisfied by:

Cash

ATHN T A

RE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 11. IR ()
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents HERIIKEEXB RS NESEEER
in respect of the disposal of a discontinued operation is as mEEEoONIT
follows:
2017
—T—+F
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration RERE =
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FEzRE kRS EAER (416)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in HERIEREXEB 2 RE R
respect of the disposal of a discontinued ReEEEE R
operation R (416)
The results of the Dragon Group for the year ended 31st REE-_Z—+E=A=1T—RHLFEE
March 2017 (up to the date of disposal) are presented below: ZHEHBHA) - Dragon &E v ¥ & 250
™
2017
—T—tF
HK$'000
FET
Revenue WA 450
Cost of sales SHE R A (207)
Other income and gains E A R ias 35
General and administrative expenses —RRITEREA (4,567)
Loss before tax PR RTE B (4,289)
Income tax expense s =
Loss after tax RBiREE (4,289)
Gain on disposal of a discontinued operation S —TE AR A TS 2 W 153
Loss for the year from a discontinued operation F R —IBR |F4C & 575 2 F5i8 (4,136)
Loss per share, from the discontinued operation: 2R E 4 1F& &1 2 B EE
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EARREE &) (0.21)
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31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 11, RIEREEK (&
The net cash flows incurred by the Dragon Group (up to the Dragon S E(EZHEFTHEHBP)ELZ
date of disposal) are as follows: REREFRELT ¢
2017
—T—tF
HK$'000
FET
Operating activities KR (6,491)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share from KERIEREEEGRERNGBERT
the discontinued operation are based on: HETIRE -
2017
—T—tF
Loss attributable to shareholders of the Company & B 4 |F &L ¥ 5% 7 AN A T
from the discontinued operation (HK$'000) R E(REE(FET) (4,136)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year used in the basic and

diluted loss per share calculation

RRFAESREAREIER ZFAD
BT E BRI T8

1,914,997,244

No adjustment had been made to the basic loss per share
from a discontinued operation presented for the year ended
31st March 2017 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the
convertible bond outstanding during the year had an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic loss per share from a discontinued

operation presented.

12. DIVIDENDS

On 8th June 2017, the Board declared a special dividend
of HK$0.06 per share, approximately HK$114,898,000 in
aggregate. This special dividend was paid on 10th July 2017.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st March 2018 (2017: Nil).

12.

HRFARARARLRZTRBESSZE5 2
RIEREXBEREABRAARBEY
& BRYERBEHEE_T—tF=A
ST-HEFERIZRIERERXBZE
PEAEBREDEMFHE -

RE
R-_E—+tEANB BEFCEMH
/)E?“’H)D:'JHX EFRR0.06B L A EN

114,898,000/8 7T  WHFRIREER=Z
—tFEATHIRSM -

EETRBERNBEZE_Z-NF=A

=t HLEFEZRBBRE(ZT 15
&) -

2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT %3} 155



156
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5 75 3 B &

31st March 201

13.

- \F=A=+—8

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic earnings/(loss) per share amount is calculated by
dividing the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amount is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares, and the profit for year
was adjusted to exclude the interest expense on convertible
bond and fair value gain on the derivative component of

convertible bond less tax effect, if any.

On 13th July 2017, the conversion price of the convertible
bond was adjusted from HK$0.25 to HK$0.074 upon the
payment of a special dividend by the Company on the same
date which, according to the instrument constituting the
convertible bond, constituted a Capital Distribution (as defined
in the instrument) as it was not paid out of the retained profits
for the financial periods after 31st March 2013. A retrospective
adjustment on the number of potential ordinary shares to be

issued from the convertible bond was made.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED it KB IEIRBRAE]

13.

BRER, (BE)

BRERERN,/(BE) HEBBERRRK
REMAEBENGAFANETERRZ
I BEEFH -

BREERMN DM BREBEARF/ITER LR
ﬁﬁﬁ%%@ﬁﬁ I A AR B R EE
REZ ZE%‘TT T AR e T BE
%‘1& B RERRBNEFHEANEGRA
BRESF ZHMERASZ RATBMBRESITET
BErz A AnBl=RRIBRE(E)

|II'

R-ZE—tHFEAT=0 " EEXRARE
BEXMERIBRER - RIFEK AT AE
HFZXIE - BAMERESZ HRER0.25
BILHBE00748 L AHBK—HER
DIKGEZERZXE) WHARE=-F
—ZFZA=THRZMBEE - ZH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

13.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

13. EREAN (BE) &)

2018 2017
—EB-N\fF —FtF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Earnings/(loss) BR(BR)
Profit/(loss) attributable to the ARFEERERZF Z A A F
shareholders of the Company, used PR F, (EE)
in the basic earnings per share (F&7)
calculation (HK$'000)
From continuing operations REFELEER 108,211 34,757
From a discontinued operation REARIEEEE — (4,136)
108,211 30,621
Interest on convertible bond AR &S 2 R 374 1,299
Fair value gain on the derivative ARBREFITETAERLDZ AR
component of convertible bond Bl zE (69) (3,432)
Profit attributable to the shareholders FARiFEEREERF 2 AN 7
of the Company, used in the diluted &5 fE(5 % 7
earnings per share calculation 108,516 28,488
Attributable to: &1
Continuing operations FEIREER 108,516 32,624
Discontinued operation BB - (4,136)
108,516 28,488
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —&=— \&=H=+—H

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued) 13. BRER (FHR) &)
Number of shares
(Restated)
(&E51)
Shares

;g
Weighted average number of ordinary

ARTEERERATN 2B 8T
shares in issue, used in the basic

TR AR N RE T 15 B
earnings per share calculation 2,497,003,886 1,914,997,244
Effect of dilution — weighted average #S&RufE — i@ A% iz

number of ordinary shares: FHE
Convertible bond Al AR E 5 228,804,146 810,810,810
Assumed issue at no consideration R A2 6 M ARIT BB AR A

on deemed exercise of all share TR R AARERE

options outstanding during the 1T

year 3,911,738 —

Weighted average number of ordinary

ARGt EEREERT 2B BT
shares in issue, used in the diluted T AR NAE 5 £
earnings per share calculation

2,729,719,770 2,725,808,054
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S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —&=— \&=H=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. V¥ - BERRE

Furniture, Plant and
fixtures machinery and
Leasehold and office Motor  demonstration
improvements equipment vehicles machinery
HE  HR- #ER BERKE
VEEA BAZRME AE URTEKE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FEr FET FEr FET
31st March 2018 —Z-N\E=f=1-8
At st April 2017; W-B—tEmA-A :
Cost AR 5,168 17,019 2,332 8,974 33,493
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (1,718) (14,564) (640) (6,186) (23,108)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,450 2,455 1,692 2,788 10,385
At 1st April 2017, net of RZE—+EmA—-H "
accumulated depreciation NBEHE 3,450 2,455 1,692 2,788 10,385
Additions AE 5,416 587 946 47,842 54,791
Disposals e - 3) - (5,377) (5,380)
Depreciation (note 7) FEMW#7) (1,695) (890) (803) (8,088) (11,476)
Exchange realignment %A% 87 82 52 1,779 2,000
At 31st March 2018, net of RZZ-NE=Zf=1+-R"
accumulated depreciation MR RFHE 7,258 2,231 1,887 38,44 50,320
At 31st March 2018: RZE-\E=A=t+-H:
Cost AE 10,694 17,719 3,362 50,850 82,625
Accumulated depreciation 25HE (3,436) (15,488) (1,475) (11,906) (32,305)
Net carrying amount REFE 7,258 2,231 1,887 38,944 50,320
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Bt 75 R MY EE

31st March 2018 ZZ—\F=A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

14. W% BERKRE @)

Furniture, Plant and
fixtures machinery and
Leasehold and office Motor  demonstration
improvements equipment vehicles machinery Total
HE &l RER R R teas
mERE BAERE AE DRREES it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHET FET FHET
31st March 2017 —Z-tE=f=1-H
At 1st April 2016; R-Z-AEMA-A
Cost AE 2,803 18,200 2,769 10,159 33,931
Accumulated depreciation 2ithe (1712) (14,716) (1,767) (8,908) (27,103)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,091 3,484 1,002 1,251 6,828
At 1st April 2016, net of RZE—/ ENA-H"
accumulated depreciation FilGE iy 1,091 3484 1,002 1,251 6,828
Additions RE 3,295 1,114 1,308 2,529 8,246
Disposals/write-off e /s — (959) (33) (360) (1,352)
Depreciation (note 7) REME7) (936) (1,143) (568) (631) (3,278)
Exchange realignment xR = (41) (17) (1) (59)
At 31st March 2017, net of R-E—+%=RA=1+-H"
accumulated depreciation MR RAHE 3,450 2,455 1,692 2788 10,385
At 31st March 2017: R=F—+%=f=1-H:
Cost AE 5,168 17,019 2,332 8,974 33,493
Accumulated depreciation 2HNE (1,718) (14,564) (640) (6,186) (23,108)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,450 2,455 1,692 2,788 10,385
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31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15. EFEE

Customer  Distribution
Goodwill relationships  agreements Total
wE EFBF DR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET
31st March 2018 —E-N\f¥=B=t-H
At 1st April 2017 and 31st March 2018: R-Z—+FMA-AK
—Z-\F=ZA=t+—-H:
Cost BRAE 373,692 19,010 16,750 409,452
Accumulated amortisation ZEEH — (19,010) (16,750) (35,760)
Net carrying amount EEFE 373,692 — — 373,692
31st March 2017 R-Z—tF=A=1+-H
At st April 2016: RZB-~EMA—A :
Cost RAE 617,285 19,010 16,750 653,045
Accumulated amortisation R EH (243,593) (19,010) (16,750) (279,353)
Net carrying amount REFE 373,692 — — 373,692
At 1st April 2016 and 31st March 2017, R-Z—AFMNA—HL
net of accumulated amortisation —E—+H=Zf=1+—-H"
MR REt 373,692 — — 373,692
At 31st March 2017: RZE—t&=A=1+—R:
Cost AR 373,692 19,010 16,750 409,452
Accumulated amortisation BETEH — (19,010) (16,750) (35,760)
Net carrying amount REFE 373,692 — — 373,692
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 201

15.

- \F=A=+—8

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
identified according to operating segments. A segment-level

summary of the goodwill allocation is presented below:

Hi-tech distribution and services

operation

SRHRE @ 8 MR # 7

15.

BEE &

EE Ty D BEDFHEFR 2 AEER
SELEEN - ﬁif;EJEEZFﬁﬁ PR EE
FIET

2017

S

HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FEr
373,692 373,692

Hi-tech distribution and services operation cash-

generating unit

The recoverable amount of the hi-tech distribution and
services operation cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using pre-tax cash
flow projection based on financial budget covering a five-
year period approved by senior management. The pre-tax
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 13.7%
(2017: 12.4%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash
flows of the hi-tech distribution and services operation cash-
generating unit beyond the five-year period is 3% (2017: nil).

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculations
of the hi-tech distribution and services operation cash-
generating unit for the years ended 31st March 2018 and
2017. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake

impairment testing of goodwill:

Distribution rights — The continuance of the distribution
rights for the hi-tech distribution and services operation in
the foreseeable future would not need any additional costs or

investment.

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is based on
past performance and management’s expectations for market

development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant units.
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S 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 ZZ—N\F=A=+—H

16. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS 16. EZZHKRE
2018 2017
—B-N\E —E— 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Listed debt investments, at amortised _FH{ERIRE - 1R#E A A

cost — 46,419
Less: current portion JB - mENER S — (46,419)
As at 31st March 2017, the effective interest rates of the held- R-ZZEE—+FE=FA=+—0  #E23HEK
to-maturity investments ranged from 3.2% to 7.0% per annum B EBREMERNFI2EZ7.0E Mt
and these investments have been matured or early redeemed ENEERN —E—+EFERAE T —+F
between May 2017 and December 2017. + - AREASEIR R B o
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Bt 75 R MY EE

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

17. ESRWRTERHBERRIER

2017
—T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade and bills receivables B 5 MR KRR R 385,453 121,124
Less: Impairment of trade receivables B S ERFIRERE — —
Trade and bills receivables, net (note (a)) B 5FEWZTE K EUKZEE -
SFRE(HYaE (a)) 385,453 121,124
Finance lease receivables, net (note (b)) BHEMEREWRIE @ F4E
(K1) 316,697 175,617
Less: non-current portion* O FEmENED D (98,738) (72,657)
Finance lease receivables, net, current B E T S WK IE R R
portion (note (b)) meEnEbs (K7t (b)) 217,959 102,960
Prepayments TR FRIE 117,242 12,374
Rental and other deposits HekHEMze 5,699 4,518
Leased assets” HEsE" 1,129 14,921
Other receivables H A pE U GRIE 93,226 49,019
217,296 80,832
Less: non-current portion* O FEmENED D (3,721) (3,095)
Prepayments, deposits and other TEfTFIE © e REAE W
receivables, net, current portion SRIEFRE - REE D 213,575 77,737
Total trade and other receivables, B 2 FE R IE & B A e U
current portion RIBHREE - KBS 816,987 301,821
*Total trade and other receivables, * B 5 e W RIE K H AL FE UL
non-current portion RIEMBEE - FEREE D 102,459 75,752
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31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

#

(a)

The leased assets represent payments made by the Group to
vendors or suppliers of machinery and equipment, but the terms
of the lease contracts of the said machinery and equipment
have not commenced. The Group records these paid amounts
under leased assets among its current assets as such assets
had already been earmarked for leases to customers. Once
the terms of a lease contract commence, the Group ceases to
recognise the amount under the leased assets and accordingly
recognise the lease receivables due under the lease contract.

Trade and bills receivables

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on letters of credit or documents against payment, and
in some cases granting a credit period of 5 to 180 days,
except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. An ageing analysis of trade and
bills receivables, based on the invoice date and net of

impairment, as at the end of the reporting period is as

17. ESZRWRFAREEWRIERE)

#

(a)

HEBERAREC MED IS RREH
RENRMER AR iR RREEES
A IERTR AR AR » NEBHHEE E 2 %
FEXNEeRCARERYEE  JTHRER
EECEREEHETRP - EHESREH
Fin AKERENTBEAZBVEEERT
ZER WHERIBEESREATZHER
YR

BERERERERRE

AEFEREFHETEBEZKRREE
RERBEXMNRZE  MERNEPS
CEBRNTS5BE180A T E 228
B EmER —MRABEMK B
BEHAR BEHREFERERE
BiREZEA B RNBRRERZ KRR
AL

follows:
2017
—EB—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
90 days or less 90 HEk AT~ 355,374 109,700
91 to 180 days 91HZE 180 H 14,898 9,126
181 to 270 days 181 HZE270H 12,195 1,252
271 to 365 days 271 HZE365H 2,102 —
Over 365 days #8365 H 884 1,046
385,453 121,124

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
Since the Group’s trade and bills receivables relate to
a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements

over its trade and bills receivable balances.

N6 =K H R WE B R
BEBEBRESINZEREEFEER
% RRERES TR ASNE
£ HNAKEZE 5 EKRFIAR
RUREBE S RAETRES » 8
BEREPZEERR - AEEY
ERHEEHREFARERRERS
S BEAER R EBERREA
ZIREE o
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. EZRWHEREMERRIEAE)
(a) Trade and bills receivables (continued) (a) EZEWFHEREWEEE)
As at 31st March 2018, trade receivables of R=—ZZFE—N\F=A=Z+—8"
HK$2,986,000 (2017: HK$1,046,000) were past due but 2,986,000/ (= T — £ #F:
not impaired, as they relate to a number of independent 1,046,000 70) 2 B S EWRIEE
customers for whom there was no recent history of BHAEIERE DHAEBEE S
default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables JE WK IE 7 K2 3B 43 3 HA 3 f8% 46 /) 50
is as follows: BeBIUIRP - 25 E 5 EWHIEA
ZEREBRAAT ¢
PLRE: 2017
—2-N\f —T—tf
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRET FiETT
Over 6 months and up to 9 months 6@ A £ 91 A 2,102 =
Over 9 months B9 & A 884 1,046
2,986 1,046
Movements of the impairment of trade receivables are BoRWZIBREZESNT
as follows:
2017
—T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
At beginning of year F4) - 19,189
Disposal of a discontinued HE—BERIEEEEDE
operation — (19,189)
At end of year FR — =
The creation or release of provision for impaired BB B B U FIE 2 B R B s B )
receivables has been included in the consolidated BEIAGEEERAN  EEHATE
statement of profit or loss. Amounts charged to the HE— AW EIRIE - AR EEERDR
allowance account are generally written off when there ZFRE— M T AR ©

is no expectation of recovering the amounts any further.
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. ESERFREREMEKRFIEE)
BERWEER EREE(E)

AEBESERERANERREZ
REEN TIIEBEHE

(a) Trade and bills receivables (continued) (a)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills

receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Hong Kong dollar BT 369 776

US dollar E7T 72,988 16,102

RMB AR 93,863 14,428

Japanese Yen = 218,233 89,581

Other currencies HiEr — 237

385,453 121,124

(b) Finance lease receivables, net (b) REHESEWIE  FHE

PLRE:] 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FETL

Gross investment in finance leases FIERERKRE 341,455 188,570
Less: unearned finance lease JB ABREZ B EERA

income (24,758) (12,953)

Present value of minimum BYSERASRE

lease amounts receivables 316,697 175,617
Less: accumulated allowance i REDRERE (M ()

for impairment (note (i) — —

316,697 175,617

Less: current portion B REER D (217,959) (102,960)

Non-current portion SEMENER 98,738 72,657
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Finance lease receivables, net (continued)

Note:

17. ESEBWREAREMERREE)
(b) MEBERUKE  FEE)
Bt -

(i The directors of the Company are of the view that the

credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding finance

lease receivables balances due from third party

customers is low. The Group has not encountered any

default in the collection of the scheduled payments of

finance lease receivables. No impairment allowance was

made for the finance lease receivables as at 31 March

2018 and 2017.

The analysis of the Group’s gross investment in finance

leases and present value of minimum lease amounts

receivable under finance leases by relevant maturity

groupings at the end of the reporting period is as

(i)

ARBEERE  AEEERKE=)
BP 2 ERBERERYGRIAR R
BRERRRTK - AEEEEKE
& THE U IR A B 5 3R X B
FMEMFER - R_E—NFR-F
—tF=RA=+—H UERHBEE
B R IR L HOR A B

BERBERRZEBEBERS
D AEEREEERRERR
EREMERLK 2 HEESRED

Hran

T

follows:
Gross amounts Present values
HWeE
2017
—T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET
Within 1 year —FR 240,301 113,045 217,959 102,960
After 1 year but not more  —FEETBBRE
than 2 years 97,650 72,015 95,619 69,227
After 2 years M1 3,504 3,510 3,119 3,430
341,455 188,570 316,697 175,617

The carrying amounts of the Group’s finance lease

receivables are denominated in the following currencies.

AEEREEERWHIAZREE
AT

SIEHEEHE -

2017
—T—+tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAET

US dollar ETT 146,915 97,712
RMB AR 169,782 77,905
316,697 175,617
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(¢) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the

reporting period was the carrying amount of the trade

and other receivables.

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Unlisted investments, at fair value

FLETRE  BHARE

17. EZRWFRAR AW FRIR &)

(c) RHBEHKR BRREERBRRES
JRE M R TR % At B W R IR 2 BRTEIEL

BARBERABECEREE

2017

—T—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
36,044 38,244

During the year, gross gain in respect of the Group’s financial

asset at fair value through profit or loss was recognised in the

statement of profit or loss.

The above investments consist of investments in short-term
money market fund (2017: short-term money market fund and
unlisted financial product purchased from a bank in PRC in
relation to principal unprotected with expected interest rate of
2.8% per annum) which were designated as financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss and have no fixed maturity

date or coupon rate.

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

Forward currency contract

EHERS

#

FAN - ARREERAREFABRZS
BMEEZWEBEBENBERDER -

R EBEREHEETEES(=F
—tF: BHEBEMSEESRA AT E
RITEE ZIFRABHFMNE2.8% 2 3F
tHERMER)ZRE ARARERERR
ARABEFABBRZEMEE @ WERBEER
BB -

19. fTEE€WMIA

2017

—FT—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,010 —

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts
to manage its exchange rate exposures. The national principal
amount of the outstanding forward currency contract as at
31st March 2018 was HK$20,832,000 (2017: Nil). Changes in
the fair value of non-hedging currency derivatives amounting

to HK$415,000 were charged to the statement of profit or loss

during the year (2017: Nil).

REEBUZNERAEEEL  UERE
HINERR R-_ZTE—N\F=ZA=+—
H: MABITZRPEREHNZEERS
%/320,832,000 (=T —CF : &) °
JEHFEBLTET AR A EEE 415,000
BITERAFEBRERBRIR(ZZ—t
Fom) o
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20. INVENTORIES 20. 7
2017
—T—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Finished goods BIRK fh 133,511 4,405
21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. REeRREEEEH
2018 2017
—=-N\F S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFERS 210,034 322,951
Time deposits TE HATF K 21,258 57,040
Cash and cash equivalents RekAE&EEER 231,292 379,991
At 31st March 2018, the effective interest rate on short-term R-ZZE—N\F=HA=+—H  %ZHIET
bank deposits was approximately 0.87% (2017: 0.58%) per FRZEBRFMNELHBOSTE(ZZE—+
annum. These deposits have an average maturity of 33 days F:058F)  ZETFRZFHHRA33
(2017: 31 days). B(ZZ—+%F :31H) -
Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following RekBLSEBEE A TIEETE :
currencies:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRET F#T
Hong Kong dollar I 32,598 203,994
US dollar ETT 102,153 147,782
RMB AR 70,105 13,893
Japanese Yen HIE 24,297 9,957
Other currencies Hih gk 2,139 4,365
231,292 379,991
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21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$70,105,000 (2017: HK$13,893,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

22. SHARE CAPITAL

(a) Share capital of the Company

21.

22.

Ordinary shares

of HK$0.01 each

RERRESEEEB (B)

RBERR - AEEUAREHEZRS
K R1T#5 82 570,105,0008 L( =T —+
13,893,000/ 7) - ARBETAEH
HaRHEMES - A BEREANHZ
HNE B IR AROI A R A5 TE - BIERFEER
RE - AEEEESBEREETINESE
B2RITHARBEHRAREME

&N
(a) ARARZBAE

Preference shares
of HK$0.01 each

BR0.01ETZEER 5RO.01 BT 2BLER
Ordinary Preference
Number share Number share
of shares capital of shares capital
BRHHE EERRA RH#E BERRA
‘000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FiK FET FK FAT FET
Authorised: EE
At 31st March 2017 RZB—+ER-2-\F
and 2018 S e 40,000,000 400,000 30,000,000 300,000 700,000
Issued: BE#T:
At 1st April 2016, RZZ—§NA-H-
31st March 2017 Z3-t£=f
and 1st April 2017 =t-8k
“E-t§MA-A 1,914,997 19,150 - - 19,150
Issue of shares upon RERTARERERET
conversion of i3 (Hrit)
convertible bond
(note) 810,811 8,108 — — 8,108
At 31st March 2018 RIZ-/\F=R=T—H 2,725,808 27,258 - - 27,258
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22. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 22, RAS(#)

(a) Share capital of the Company (continued) (a) ADTRZBRA(E)
Note: Hiat
On 13th July 2017, the Company issued and allotted R=ZF—+tFtA+=0 ' ARRERITHE
810,810,810 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a conversion AMRESHFAEAZ L BER  RAKES
price of HK$0.074 per share upon the exercise of conversion fi& B% 7 0.074 7% 7T % 17 & BL 810,810,810
rights by the convertible bondholder, resulting in the increase R EEO0.01 BT H L BARARG » 5
of share capital and share premium by approximately 188 AR 7R 2 A& 17 74 (B 5> 5l 38 AN 49 8,108,000 7
HK$8,108,000 and HK$51,892,000, respectively. JC}% 51,892,000 AT °

(b) Share options of the Company (b) EATERE
On 4th September 2014, the shareholders of the RZETE—MFENLAMA - K’“ﬂﬂﬁ

Company approved the adoption of a share option
scheme (the “2014 Scheme”). Under the terms of the
2014 Scheme, the Board may at its discretion offer
share options to any employee, agent, consultant
or representative of the Company or any subsidiary,
including any executive or non-executive director of
the Company or any subsidiary or any other person
whom the Board considers in its sole discretion,
have contributed or will contribute to the Group (the
“Participants”). The principal purpose of the 2014
Scheme is to reward the Participants who have
contributed or will contribute to the Group and to
encourage the Participants to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The
2014 Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years commencing on the adoption date.

The movement in the number of share options
outstanding and their related weighted average exercise
price are as follows:

RitERMBRESE(=F—
FErE ) BRE-_FT— @iﬁaz
Gk ExgARBRARFLE
AHEARZEMES - K2 - B
MK BREZSREBHYN
B B S AR R B AE BB (E
BB ZARBHEMRKBRF.ZE
AT IERITE S HEMEMA
T(2EF DERLERE —F
—MOFEFEEIZEERBYEAEE
#ﬁaﬁ&%ﬁﬁaﬁz/A%
VB2 EEARARBREBIRZ
Emﬂ iRBER BORAAKRR
REBEHZEE  —T—HF5E
mERA A HREE  AREATE -

HARITEZBREXBEESHRES
RANEFHITEENT

Weighted
average
exercise price Number of
per share options
SR MEFY
1TEE BRESE
HK$
BT
As at 1st April 20186, RZZE—RFWMA—H
31st March 2017 and —T—+H=A=+—HK
1st April 2017 —E—tFMWA—H — —
Granted during the year FRFL 0.115 73,232,000
As at 31st March 2018 RZE—-N\F=A=+—H 0.115 73,232,000
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22. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

Share options of the Company (continued)

The share options are exercisable commencing on the
date of grant with a validity period of 10 years from the
date of grant, i.e. 16th August 2017. As at 31st March
2018, none of the share options granted during the year
ended 31st March 2018 have been exercised.

The fair value of the share options granted during
the year ended 31st March 2018, determined using
a binomial model, was approximately HK$4,684,000.
The Group had recognised a share option expense of
HK$4,684,000 during the year ended 31st March 2018.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year ended 31st March 2018 was determined
as at the date of grant using a binomial model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the
share options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

Expected dividend yield (%) 0.000
Expected volatility (%) 79.012
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2.030
Expected life of share options (year) 10.000

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which
may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the share options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
73,232,000 share options outstanding under the 2014
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 73,232,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of HK$732,000 and share premium of
HK$7,690,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 73,232,000 share options
outstanding under the 2014 Scheme, which represented
approximately 2.7% of the Company’s shares in issue as
at that date.

22, BA(#)

(b)

KARBRAE(E)

BREEREHEHEIZZ—EFN
A+RB)BET TTE - B
ABTFE RZFE-—N\F=A=1+—
H BERSEE-—"FT - NE=FH
S+ HALFERLZEREEE
7118 o
NZEABAEERBEE=F—N
FZAZ+—RALEEREZER
R R (B #)4,684,000 7T o K&
BREBEz_"Z—N\F=A=+—
BEFECZERABERERZ A
4,684,000/ 7T °

REBEE_ZE—N\F=A=+—HI
FEREZUESEE BEREY
ARrBEARELBHER -BAE
NET FEEZECEHBEREZ
R R AE M o TRINRERAZER
2B ABUE

TEEARR B (%) 0.000
TRERR 18 (%) 79.012
R A= (%) 2.030
TRERRE AR F HA(5F) 10.000

B B R IR [ BB R IR R R R B T
ZEEBZBRE  NAEI—E/E
BRAER -

RETAREFER  XEFKE
BB E 4R o

RBMEHR ARAFRR T —NF
=T & 18 T B 73,232,000 & kK 17
FEHERE - BRIBEAQARIREEARE
B ZEEREEREITEESE
B A A &) B 17 %8 473,232,000 BR
T BAY - BHN732,00078 T IR A K
7,690,0007% 7T B 17 5 (B (F0BR B 17
FAX) e

R ERSEHBERERB B K
APEIR-_Z—HWNEHFBETE
73,232,000 17 18 7 17 {5 B8 AR 4 - &
REBARARDEITRHDLK2.7% °

2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT 3R

173



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

23. RESERVES 23. f#fE
Cumulative
translation
adjustments
Share  Contributed  Share option (note (a))  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve  RifRERE losses Total
RAEE 104 BRERE (Hit(a) 2itEE L]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Balances at 1st April 2016 WoB-AEMA-BZEH 84477 1,071,190 - 248 (360,733) 795,182
Profit for the year EREH — - - = 30,621 30,621
Currency translation differences  EiMEf ¢ ERHEZE
of foreign operations — — — (1,745) — (1,745)
Total comprehensive income ER2ENREE
for the year — — — (1,745) 30,621 28,876
Balances at 31st March 2017 RZE-+E=A=1-Bk
and at 1st April 2017 “E-+EMA-B N B4TT 1,071,190 - (1497)  (330,112) 824,058
Profit for the year ERET - - - - 108,211 108,211
Currency translation differences /M Ef¢ EHHEZE
of foreign operations - - - 25,635 - 25,635
Total comprehensive income ER2ENREE
for the year - - - 25,635 108,211 133,846
Special dividend paid (note 12)  BIRMERIRE(HZ12) - (114,898) - - - (114,898)
Issue of shares upon conversion R {EAIRKEFELTRA
of convertible bond (H£22)
(note 22(a)) 51,892 - - - - 51,802
Equity-settled share-based INEREENRONFRS
transactions (note 22(b)) (Hiz22m) - - 4,684 - - 4,684
Balances at 31st March 2018 RZE-N\E=A=t+-Bz
3 136,369 956,292 4,684 24,138 (221,901) 899,582
Note: Hist -
(a) Cumulative translation adjustments (a) B GE R
The cumulative translation adjustments represent cumulative D E RS E RIS N TR B ISR
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the EHEA Y BEINEETE - DIRRI B HRE

financial statements of operations outside Hong Kong which N N N
o o= e Btk 2.0 LA SN 2 R EHIR AR

are dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy of

foreign currencies, which is set out in note 2.9 to the financial

statements.
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24. CONVERTIBLE BOND

Liability component of convertible bond — AJ#RES - B &

24, TRRES

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TIETT

Derivative component of convertible bond AI#&ES 2 T4 T A5

— 241

On 20th August 2014, the Company issued convertible
bond in the principal amount of HK$60,000,000 to Million
Land Limited, for the partial settlement of the acquisition
of the entire equity interest in the Dragon Group and the
shareholder’s loan owed by the Dragon Group to its then
shareholder. The maturity date of the convertible bond was
on the third anniversary of the date of issuance (i.e. 21st
August 2017). The convertible bond bore no interest on the
principal amount. No security or guarantee was granted in
respect of the convertible bond. The convertible bond could
be converted into 240,000,000 shares at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.25 per conversion share (subject to adjustment
pursuant to the terms of the convertible bond). On 10th
July 2017, the conversion price of the convertible bond was
adjusted from HK$0.25 to HK$0.074 upon the same date of
the payment of a special dividend, which was defined in the
instrument constituting the convertible bond as constituting a
capital distribution, made by the Company.

On 18th July 2017, pursuant to an exercise of conversion
rights by the convertible bondholder in respect of the
convertible bond in the principal amount of HK$60,000,000,
the Company issued and allotted 810,810,810 ordinary
shares, representing 42.34% of the existing number of issued

shares immediately before the relevant share issue.

RZZE—NWFNAZF+HB XAF
[ Million Land Limited3 17 & & %8
60,000,000 & T2 Al R &S - LABE
# Dragon 5 [# 2 2 #f ik # & Dragon & &
BREZRRRZBRRER 2 HBHFKIEA
HRRESZHHAAZTAN-AFE
BRI ZZE—+tFNA=Z+—H) Al
BEHFZANSBETE o MERATRKE
HREERLIER - AIRRESF T IRTZP
HBEFREBRRMD0.25 BT (ZRAIR
BAIREFZIGRELHZAE)LBRR
240,000,000 &t - R=ZE—+F+ A
+RH - AMERESF HBREERRERE
BRI A4 BIAR B (PR K AT R AR & 25 SR R
EEABKEARDIK)E  B0.25ETH
BZE0.07487T -

RZZE—tF+LA+T=8" BE—A
MR E 258 A B A £ 5 60,000,000%
TZABMRESTELRE  KXQFE
TR AL ¥ 810,810,810 AR L @AY - (B &
BEEBERMBETARAEBITROHBE 2
42.34% °
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24. CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued)

The convertible bond recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group is bifurcated into

two components for accounting purposes, namely the liability

24. WRRES#E)
EAREE 276 MR R AR 2 A&
BEZREME D AMERD A’
MARITET AR D - MRFBOIRME

component and the derivative component, and the movements AR Z &#EInT -
of these components during the reporting period are as
follows:
Liability Derivative
component component Total
afEHs FETARS #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TFET
At 1st April 2016 RZT—R"FMA—H 58,155 3,673 61,828
Amortisation of the liability AR EHFEEDD 2B
component of convertible bond (H1&E9)
(note 9) 1,299 — 1,299
Fair value gain on the derivative AMBRESFITETARD 2
component of convertible bond DR ERE — (3,432) (3,432)
At 31st March 2017 and RZZT—tF=A=+—H
1st April 2017 R-—ZT—+EMA—R 59,454 241 59,695
Amortisation of the liability AR ERFEESDD 2 B
component of convertible bond (H1:#9)
(note 9) 374 — 374
Fair value gain on the derivative ARRESFITET AL 2
component of convertible bond N ERE — (69) (69)
Conversion of convertible bond HIa R ES (59,828) (172) (60,000)

At 31st March 2018

R=F—-—N\F=H=+—H
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. ESREARERAMENSRIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade and bills payables B S REMNFIERENER 495,169 158,194
Accrual for operating expenses KEBRH Y B 94,626 53,810
Receipts in advance TEUR FRIE 83,002 38,388
Deposits received (note 27) Bz s (Mt 27) 20,021 6,616
Other payables Ho e 58 53,027 35,490
745,845 292,498

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables, based on the

invoice date, is as follows:

BHRNFRBARENRBREZARZE

BT -

2018 2017

=E-N\F —T—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

90 days or less 90 HE AT 455,678 145,468
91 to 180 days 91 HE180H 29,761 7,216
181 to 270 days 181 HE270H 952 1,486
271 to 365 days 271 H&Z365H 3,118 1,272
Over 365 days A 365 H 5,660 2,752
495,169 158,194
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 25.

The carrying amounts of the trade and bills payables are

denominated in the following currencies:

BEERNREARLMENRIRE)

B 5 1 508 B A 0 SR E (B 0L )
MR -

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —T—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FETL

Hong Kong dollar BT 3,065 35,478
US dollar ET 100,008 9,722
RMB AR 36,421 8,896
Japanese Yen =NE] 351,123 102,373
Other currencies Hibh gk 4,552 1,725
Total FRES) 495,169 158,194

26. DEFERRED TAX 26. EEFHIE

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences under
the liability method using the applicable tax rates which are
expected to apply at the time of reversal of the temporary

differences.
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26. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities), without

taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the

same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

At 1st April 2016, 31st March RZE—"FMA—H -

2017, 1st April 2017 and T+ EFE=-f=1+—
31st March 2018

—E-LEmA-AR
—T—\¥=A=+—AH

26. ELEBIE(E)
I L RILHAR TR FDAE B E NS

BT EEHBEEE (BE)Z280
s @
Accelerated Provision
tax of
depreciation inventories
DNEEBE T FEEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT FET
(685) 191 (494)

As at 31st March 2018, the Group had unrecognised deferred
tax assets of HK$9,973,000 (2017: HK$9,628,000), primarily
representing the tax effect of cumulative tax losses (subject
to agreement by relevant tax authorities) which can be carried
forward indefinitely. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time

and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be

available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

R-Z—NE=ZA=+—0  A&EEZXk
TERIEERIEEE A 9,973,000 8T (=F
—+t4F 9,628,000/ L) + EEERAH
BEEBUACHBBBHRERE) 2 MBEK
B ZoBEUERBLEE - ARZEER
KREE—BRESGEBZHEBAR - B
R AR ] 8E A FE AR B R I A LA SR 18
BB MU ERZEEBERELEREBE
EE o
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31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

26.

27.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the enterprise income tax law of the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1st
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31st December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1st
January 2008.

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately HK$2,556,000 at 31st March 2018.
In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute these unremitted earnings that are

subject to withholding taxes in the foreseeable future.

DEPOSITS RECEIVED

26.

27.

EFERLIR ()

BERECEREHE - RFRBAMK
ZINELERBIMNEEETIR 2R BB
M10% BB - ZBEHAETH_TENF—
A—HRBERWHERANR-_TZTLF+=A
=t+—BRELEZAF o HF BN EE
INEEEFEREEERITAREBRE
Al e E AR 2 FEHI BB R - AR E
mE MAMREAES5%H10% - At + &
EEBAEANTREAMKZZHE AT
BEZEENF-A—ARBRELZABNIK
B2 RESMTENF -

ERPEAEHBAR CREAB TR
ERBBIAEREEHBABRERN
—E-NFE=ZA=+—H#%2556,000%
T BEEZRR - ZEMBARNARARK
TAIBE D K% S ABMN TR 2 REH R
Ao

EWEE

2017
—ZE—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET

Deposits received from lessees B Bt E & WEUEFE A
on finance leasing 2R 67,461 29,125
Less: current portion (note 25) B OREE D (MEE25) (20,021) (6,616)
Non-current portion ERENEL 47,440 22509
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28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 28.

OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Cash used in operations

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash

flows used in operating activities:

RERERBRMEE

(a) BEFREAZRE

B BT 15 50 BT i A B2 4R
REREFRHE

BEBMAZ

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) before income tax: BETEH TSR (BE)
From continuing operations REFEKEEFETE 131,581 42,890
From a discontinued operation RKE—IERIEEEER — (4,136)
Adjustments for: FHEE -
Finance income U3 ON (3,138) (5,797)
Finance costs MIEER 549 1,471
Fair value gain on the derivative ARREFITETEE S
component of convertible bond Z A ERE (69) (3,432)
Changes in fair value of financial BAREFABRZ
assets at fair value through TREEZANBEES
profit or loss (244) —
Fair value gain on derivative THEEMIAZ
financial instruments A ERE (415) —
Income received on early RAERIFE R HIRE
redemption of a held-to- ZCON
maturity investment (150) —
Depreciation of property, plant Y - REREEITE
and equipment 11,476 3,278
(Gain)/loss on disposal of HEWE - BRE R
items of property, plant and BEH 2z (as) B
equipment, net R (715) 407
Gain on disposal of a HE—HERIEEEER
discontinued operation g 2% — (153)
Equity-settled share option DA A E 2 IR R S
expense 4,684 —
143,559 34,528
Increase in inventories FEm (128,760) (4,221)
Increase in trade and B 5 FE WK TE R H A
other receivables JE R IE 1 AN (512,103) (154,280)
Increase/(decrease) in trade B RENRIEREM
and other payables FEAF R IEE A0, O ) 469,224 (60,274)
Net cash flows used in operations LIBEFMERZIRE
REFE (28,080) (184,247)
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28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 28. mMEBREREBRMT(Z)
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) BMEFTBELEZAEEH
2018
—E-N\F
Bank loans
RITER
HK$’000
FHET
At beginning of year F4) —
New bank loans HILIRITE R 228,759
Repayment of bank loans EEBITER (228,759)
At end of year FIR —
29. BANKING FACILITIES 29. RITWME
As at 31st March 2018, the Group had banking facilities of RZE—N\F=ZA=+—H ' A&EENSE
HK$373,850,000 (2017: HK$676,105,000) from several banks B TRITZIBITHE 373,850,000 7T (=
for loans, trade financing and treasury investment. As at 31st T —+ % : 676,105,000/ T )EAE R -
March 2018, banking facilities of HK$352,460,000 (2017: BOMERMBIRE -RZZTE—-—N\F=H
HK$146,910,000) were utilised by the Group. =+—H ' ~&£EE #H352,460,000 %
JE(=Z —+t4F : 146,910,000 L) 2 iR
1TRE ©

30. HAREE

RZZ—N\F=ZA=+—08  A£EEH
ETEHEFPEFZBARE S RIRER
FEME TIRITRMEIEIR 4,459,000 7T
(ZZ—+%F :3,262,000/7T) °

30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March 2018, the guarantees given by the Group
to certain banks in respect of performance bonds and bid
bonds in favour of certain contract customers amounted to
HK$4,459,000 (2017: HK$3,262,000).
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31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 31. REHEZH
As lessor EREHBA
The Group leases certain of its equipment under operating AEBRBELCEHELRHFHERES TH
lease arrangements. The leases for these equipment are o ZERBCEERMAE—F -

negotiated for a term of one year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future REERR - AEBEIREZIET A BEE L
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating EHEZ R REEBSAFEN T HRME
leases falling due as follows: H
2017
—E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year 1EURA 8,114 —
As lessee {EEEFE A
The Group leases certain of its office properties and AREBREZHEHEESHELTHHEEHEE T
warehouses under operating lease arrangements. The leases MAESMENEE - ZEWE 2 THEE
for these properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one NFAEEIETE o
to three years.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future MNEREEIR - NEBREZE ] BlEEK
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating BHEZARZERS AN T EAMEE]
leases falling due as follows: HA -
2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within one year 1F AR 12,609 14,181
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F2EESF(BREEREME) 18,171 5,247
30,780 19,428
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31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. BAXREE
As at 31st March 2018, the Group did not have any significant KRB N\F=ZA=+—H AEEITE
capital commitments (2017: Nil). FERIERERNAE( T —HF : &) -
33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. BEHEEALTZRS
Key management compensation of the Group FTEEFTEEBEAEMS
The key management compensation of the Group other than AREBTEEBAB(KRFEFELLER
the executive directors from the continuing operations for the ZHITESRIN BT -
year is as follows:
2018 2017
=E2-N\F —Z—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Salaries, allowances and bonuses e B RIEA 6,880 7,938
Equity-settled share option expenses  UAMEzSAEE 2 BEARAERT S 640 —
Retirement benefits — defined RINER — REH-KETE
contribution scheme 57 80
7,577 8,018
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 EEMEe 2 E—SHBIANPBRERM T
to the financial statements. 8o
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34.

35.

SERE H S —E

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

All financial assets of the Group as at 31st March 2018 and
2017 were categorised as loans and receivables, except for
held-to-maturity investments, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and derivative financial instrument in

notes 16, 18 and 19 to the financial statements, respectively.

All financial liabilities of the Group and the Company as at
31st March 2018 and 2017 were categorised as financial
liabilities at amortised cost, except for the derivative
component of convertible bond which has been categorised

as a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform to current year’s presentation. On 13th July 2017, the
conversion price of the convertible bond was adjusted from
HK$0.25 to HK$0.074 upon the payment of a special dividend
by the Company on the same date which, according to the
instrument constituting the convertible bond, constituted
a capital distribution (as defined in the instrument).
Retrospective adjustment on the number of potential ordinary
shares to be issued from the convertible bond and the
respective amounts of diluted earnings/(loss) per share were

made.

34.

35.

RERE S 2EWMTA

AEBR=_ZE—N\FR=ZE—tF=A
=qF= EZ%%%@Q%%@% " K % E
WRIE (DRI B B R M 16 ~ 18 &2 19
ZEZRIBHEE BRARBEFABRZZS
BMEERITESBMIARIN) ©

KEERAAARZE-—NFR=ZF—+
FZA=Zt-BZMEEREERERR
BHERAZEBEBE  HCRBERRAR
BEff ARG 2 @BAE I JBBRES 20T
AT AEDERIN

g e

ETUHREBFEESHOBEUREERFE
225 -R=ZF—+tF+tA+=0 EX
AEIRF BB ZMERIREE - REEK
AR ES 2 XIE - BARRES 2 LR
BR0.258 TLHAEE0.0748 7L WK
—EHEADIR(ERRZXIE) - ARAIE
HAMRES K T ETOEESBRRN
HARERESET (BB ZEELE
EITENRE -

2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT 3§

185



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. XA FMBMRRE

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the RABRHREH R Z B AR R 2 B R
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: T

PLRE: 2017
—E-N\F —FE—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FEr
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E S g 211 369
Investment in subsidiaries REB AR Z’E 666,140 702,598
666,351 702,967
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables E At fE W R IE 382 262
Amount due from a subsidiary FEU—FE T B A R FKIE 11,777 1,121
Cash and cash equivalents HekRESFMEER 21,672 58,326
33,831 59,709
Total assets EEHAE 700,182 762,676
EQUITY s
Share capital &N 27,258 19,150
Reserves (note) FAC =) 582,728 590,296
Total equity R 609,986 609,446
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

36. ADQBMBAMRERE)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FETL
LIABILITIES af&
Current liabilities REBEE
Derivative component of convertible AMRES 2ITETA
bond =B — 59,694
Other payables H fth < 5K IE 1,073 846
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAT — R B A B IR 89,123 92,690
90,196 153,230
Total equity and liabilities EELAEHE 700,182 762,676
Net current liabilities REBaERE (56,365) (93,521)
Total assets less current liabilities BEELABERABARE 609,986 609,446
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31st March 2018 —E— N \F=A=+—H

36.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

36. NARPEMREKE)

Hfi

AR EEHENT

Share  Contributed Share option Accumulated
premium surplus reserves losses Total
R EE BB BRERRE RIEBE mam
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Balances at 1st April 2016 RZZ—AENA—Hz&H# 84,477 1,071,190 — (532,335) 623,332
Loss for the year and total FABERFNEZENEEE
comprehensive income
for the year — — — (33,036) (33,036)
Balances at 31st March 2017 R=T—+tF=A=+—HK
and at 1st April 2017 —E—ENA-B &S 84,477 1,071,190 — (565,371) 590,296
Profit for the year and total FREF R FAZEY SRR
comprehensive income
for the year — — — 50,754 50,754
Special dividend (note 12) RIS (Afat 12) - (114,898) - - (114,898)
Issue of shares upon RABRATRREFEEITRG
conversion of convertible (Hfit22(a))
bond (note 22(a)) 51,892 — — — 51,892
Equity-settled share-based NERHEEUARD RS
transactions (note 22(b)) (Bizt22(b)) - - 4,684 - 4,684
Balances at 31st March 2018 R-Z—N\F=A=+—H
a2 136,369 956,292 4,684 (514,617) 582,728
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